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BEFORE THE ARIZONA CORPORATIGii L u i v u v l l r 3 r 3 l u l A  

~ ~ ~ ~ ~ V E 5  
COMMISSIONERS Anzofla h p o r a b o n  Commission 
BOB STUMP, CHAIRMAN DOCKETED ZRlb SEP I 1 P 3: 59 

SEP 1 1  2014 
GARY PIERCE 
BRENDA BURNS 
BOB BURNS DOCKETED BY 
SUSAN BITTER SMITH 

IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION 
OF NAVOPACHE ELECTRIC 

DETERMINATION OF THE FAIR VALUE 
OF ITS PROPERTY FOR RATEMAKING 
PURPOSES, TO FIX A JUST AND 
REASONABLE RATE OF RETURN 
THEREON, TO APPROVE RATES 
DESIGNED TO DEVELOP SUCH RETURN, 
AND FOR RELATED APPROVALS. 

a 
COOPERATIVE, INC., FOR A 

?? 
c - <  T 

DOCKET NO. E-01787A-14-0302 

APPLICATION TO INCREASE RATES AND 
CHARGES PURSUANT TO A.A.C. R14-2-107 

Pursuant to Arizona Revised Statues (“A.R.S.”) 0 40-250 and Arizona Administrativt 

Code (“A.A.C.”) R14-2-107 (“Rule 107”), Navopache Electric Cooperative, Inc. (“NEC” or tht 

“Cooperative”), hereby submits its Application for a Determination of the Fair Value of its Propertj 

for Ratemaking Purposes, to Fix a Just and Reasonable Rate of Return Thereon, to Approve Rate! 

Designed to Develop Such Return, and for Related Approvals (the “Application”). In support of thi! 

Application, NEC states as follows: 

BACKGROUND 

1. NEC is an Arizona member-owned non-profit rural electric distributior 

cooperative headquartered in Lakeside, Arizona. The Cooperative provides electric distributior 

service to approximately 38,399 meters located in Navajo, Apache, Greenlee and Gila Counties 

Arizona and approximately 1,553 meters in Catron County, New Mexico. NEC is classified as a Clas: 

A utility under A.A.C. R14-2-103(A)(3)(q). 

2. NEC’s current rates and charges were established in Decision 73255 issued Jul! 

30,2012 based upon an adjusted test year ending April 30,2010. 
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3. NEC’s 8-member Board of Directors (“Board”) is elected by the Cooperative’s 

members and oversees all aspects of the Cooperative’s operations. At a special meeting of the Board 

held on June 18,2014, the Board approved the filing of this Application. 

4. In4 Decision 73649 (February 6, 2013), the Arizona Corporation Commission 

(“Commission”) adopted revisions to A.A.C. R14-2-103 and the new Rule 107 which establish an 

alternative streamlined ratemaking application and process for nonprofit cooperatives providing 

electric or natural gas utility service. 

5. On July 9, 2014, NEC submitted to the Commission’s Utilities Division Staff 

(“Staff’) a Request for Pre-Filing Eligibility Review in accordance with A.A.C. R14-2-107(C) which 

included a draft of this Application, a proposed form of customer notice and a proposed form or 

recommended order. 

6.  On August 14, 2014, NEC met with Staff as required by A.A.C. R14-2- 

107(C)(3) to discuss the Cooperative’s eligibility under A.A.C. R14-2-107(B), the proposed form of 

customer notice, and the proposed form of recommended order. At that meeting, Staff advised NEC 

that it meets the eligibility requirements of A.A.C. R14-2-107(B) for filing a streamlined rate case. At 

that meeting, Staff also approved the form of customer notice to be mailed to customers as required by 

A.A.C. R14-2-107(C)(5) and (D). 

7. After meeting with Staff, NEC filed a Request for Docket Number and Notice 

of Filing Proposed form of Customer Notice on August 14, 2014, in accordance with A.A.C. R14-2- 

107(C)(4). The docket number in this docket was assigned that same day. 

8. On August 2 1,20 14, NEC caused a copy of the approved customer notice to be 

mailed via First Class Mail to all customers of record as of the date of mailing. On August 28, 2014, 

NEC docketed a Notice of Mailing Customer Notice certifying that the approved customer notice was 

mailed via First Class Mail on August 21, 2014 to each customer of the Cooperative as required by 
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A.A.C. R14-2-107(C)(5) and (D). The customer notice sets a deadline of September 24, 2014 foI 

customers of NEC to file intervention requests and/or objections to the Application. 

REQUEST FOR RATE INCREASE 

9. NEC’s test year (“Test Year”) is the twelve months ending December 31, 2013. 

NEC seeks authority from the Commission to adjust its rates to produce an additional $1,531,245 in 

base revenues from Arizona customers than produced during the Test Year reflecting a 3.28% 

increase. Applied system-wide, the requested rates will produce $1,908,652 in additional base 

revenues reflecting a 4.0 % increase. The rate increase would yield system-wide Operating Income oi 

$4,465,647 and Net Income of $2,114,358. NEC’s request, if granted, will result in a 5.1 1% system- 

wide rate of return on a Fair Value Rate Base ( “ F V W )  of $87,400,193. 

10. Under the Application, a NEC residential customer with monthly consumption 

of 443 kWh (the average system-wide consumption) will see an increase in base revenue of $2.67 per 

month, from $56.05 to $58.72, or 4.76%. A residential customer with monthly consumption of 34s 

kWh (the median system-wide consumption) will see an increase in base revenue of $2.67 per month, 

from $46.92 to $49.59, or 5.69%. 

11. The rate increase is necessary to recover increased operating costs in the 

categories of operation and maintenance, consumer accounts, customer service and information, sales 

administrative and general, depreciation and amortization, taxes, interest and payroll and to maintaii 

the financial integrity of the Cooperative. 

ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA 

12. The eligibility requirements for filing a streamlined rate case are contained iI 

A.A.C. R14-2-107(B). As set forth below, NEC meets all of the eligibility requirements of the rule. 

a. NEC is classified as a Class A utility under A.A.C. R14-2-103(A)(3)(q 

and, therefore, meets the eligibility requirements of A.A.C. R14-2-107(B)(l). 

b. The last full permanent rate case decision for NEC was issued a: 
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Decision 73255 on July 30, 2012, which is within the 180-month period preceding the filing of this 

Application as required in A.A.C. R14-2-107(B)(2). 

c. This is the first filing by NEC under A.A.C. R14-2-107, so the 

Cooperative meets the eligibility requirements of A.A.C. R14-2-107(B)(3) and (4). 

d. NEC is required by law and/or contract to make a certified annual 

financial and statistical report to the Rural Utilities Service (“RUS”). RUS meets the eligibility 

requirement of A.A.C. R14-2-107(B)(5). A copy of the RUS December 2013 annual financial and 

statistical report is attached hereto as Attachment 1. 

e. NEC’s calendar year 2013 Test Year complies with the definition of a 

”test year” in A.A.C. R14-2-107(A)( 14), so the Cooperative meets the eligibility requirement of 

A.A.C. R14-2-107(B)(6). 

f. Attached hereto as Attachment 2 are NEC’s audited financial statements 

The ending date is within the time frame permitted by A.A.C. €or the period ending April 30, 2014. 

R14-2- 107(B)(7) so the Cooperative meets this eligibility requirement. 

g. NEC is proposing an increase in actual Test Year total base revenue of 

4.00% which is well below the maximum increase of 6% permitted under A.A.C. R14-2-107(B)(8), so 

this eligibility requirement is met. 

h. NEC’s Application uses an original cost rate base as its fair value rate 

base and as part of this Application waives the use of a reconstruction new rate base in determining the 

Cooperative’s fair value rate base, so the Cooperative meets the eligibility requirement of A.A.C. R14- 

2-107(B)(9). 

1. NEC’s Application does not propose: (i) any change to an existing 

adjustor or surcharge mechanism; (ii) adoption of any new adjustor or surcharge mechanism; or (iii: 

adoption of a new hook-up fee or another new type of fee, so the Cooperative meets the eligibilio 

requirement of A.A.C. R14-2-107(B)(lO). 
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j. NEC’s Application does not propose a “rate structure change” as definec 

1 in A.A.C. R14-2-107(B)( 1 1) or any non-price tariff change, so the Cooperative meets the eligibilitj 

requirement of A.A.C. Rl4-2-107(B)(ll). 

k. NEC’s Application does not seek financing approval or consolidatior 

with another docket, so the Cooperative meets the eligibility requirement of A.A.C. R14-2-107(B)( 12) 

The customer notice provided by NEC conformed to the requirements oj 

A.A.C. R14-2-107(D) and was approved by Staff on August 14, 2014, so the Cooperative meets the 

eligibility requirement of A.A.C. R14-2- 107(B)( 13). 

~ 

~ 

1. 

m. NEC is a distribution cooperative. Pursuant to A.A.C. R14-2. 

107(B)( 14), objections to the Application timely submitted by the Cooperative’s customers maj 

represent no more than 5% of all customer accounts or no more than 1,000 customer accounts 

1 whichever is fewer. For purposes of determining eligibility under this rule, the total number of NEC’: 

Arizona customer accounts as of December 31, 2013, was 38,363. Five percent of the customei 

, accounts is 1,918, so the applicable objection threshold for NEC in this rate case is 1,000. As of the 

close of business on September 10,20 14, the Commission and NEC combined had received consumel 

, comments from only ten (10) customers in opposition to the Application which is far below the 

permitted number of 1,000 objections for a streamlined rate case. In a subsequent filing, NEC wil 

update the number of customer comments in opposition to the Application through the close oj 

business on September 24,2014, the deadline for filing objections. 
I 

n. The eligibility requirement in A.A.C. R14-2- 107(B)( 15) applies tc 
I 

generation cooperatives and does not apply to NEC. 

FILING REOUIREMENTS 
I 

13. The name of the Applicant is Navopache Electric Cooperative, Inc. 

24 

25 

14. The Test Year is the 12 month period ending December 3 1,20 13. 
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15. NEC hereby waives the use of reconstruction cost new rate base to determine it 

fair value rate base as required pursuant to A.A.C. R14-2-107(E)(2). 

16. In accordance with A.A.C. R14-2-107(E)(3), a copy of NEC’s December 201: 

annual financial and statistical report to RUS is attached hereto as Attachment 1. It is the most recen 

annual report submitted to RUS by NEC. 

17. In accordance with A.A.C. R14-2-107(E)(3), NEC’s audited financia 

statements for the period ending April 30,2014, are attached hereto as Attachment 2. 

18. In accordance with A.A.C. R14-2-107(E)(5) and (6),  attached hereto a 

Attachment 3 is the information listed in the table in A.A.C. R14-2-103(B)(l) and Summary Schedule: 

A-1.0, A-2.0, A-4.0 and A-5.0; Rate Base Schedules B-2.0, B-5.0, B-5.1 and B-5.2; Test Year Incomc 

Statement Schedules C-1 .O, C-2.0, C-2.1 through C-2.17; Cost of Capital Schedules D-2.0 and D-2.1 

Financial Statements and Statistical Schedules E-1 .O, E-1 . l ,  E-2.0, E-5.0, E-6.0, E-7.0, E-7.1 througl 

E-7.8, and E-9; Projection and Forecast Schedules F-1.0, F-2.0, F-3.0, F-4.0; Effect of Proposed Tarif 

Schedules H-1.0, H-2.0, H-2.1 through H-2.1.3, H-3.0, H-4.0, H-4.1 through H-4.9, H-5.0, H-5.: 

through H-5.6. Included in Attachment 3 is a brief narrative and proposed Tariff Schedules. 

19. Attached hereto as Attachment 4 is a copy of the notice that was mailed via Firs 

Class Mail to each customer of NEC as of the date of the mailing. A copy of the Notice of Mailin4 

Customer Notice was previously docketed with the Commission on August 24,20 14. 

20. 

21. 

Attached hereto as Attachment 5 is a proposed form of order. 

NEC requests that this Application be approved without a hearing. 

APPLICANT’S CONTACT INFORMATION 

22. All communications, notices, and correspondence regarding this Applicatioi 

including discovery and pleadings with respect thereto, should be served upon the following: 
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Michael A. Curtis 
William P. Sullivan 

CURTIS, GOODWIN, SULLIVAN, 
UDALL & SCHWAB, P.L.C. 

501 East Thomas Road 
Phoenix, Arizona 85012-3205 

mcurtis401 @aol.com 
wsullivan@cgsuslaw.com 

(602) 393-1700 

With Copies to: 
David Hedrick 

C.H. Guernsey & Company 
5555 North Grand Blvd. 

Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73 1 12-5507 

david. hedrick@chguernsey .us 
(405) 416-8157 

and 

Charles R. Moore 
Navopache Electric Cooperative, Inc. 

1878 West White Mountain Blvd. 
Lakeside, Arizona 85929 

cmoore@navopache.org 
(928) 368-5 1 18 

WHEREFORE, in accordance with A.A.C. R14-2-107, NEC requests that tht 

Commission enter its order approving the Application and the proposed rate increase. 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED this 1 lth day of September, 2014. 

CURTIS, GOODWIN, SULLIVAN, 
UDALL & SCHWAB. P.L.C. 

By: 

William P. Sullivan 
50 1 East Thomas Road 
Phoenix, Arizona 85012-3205 
Attorneys for Navopache Electric 
Cooperative, Inc. 
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ORIGINAL and 15 copies filed 
this 1 I* day of September, 2014, with: 

Docket Control 
ARIZONA CORPORATION COMMISSION 
1200 West Washington 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 
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PART A, Sl‘ATEMEhT OF OPERATIONS 

39,336,631 j 199 255 

RLS FiaRncial aitd 0 Report Electric Distribution Rcviaiea Dab 2013 



UNITED STATES DEPARTMESTOF ACKICULTUKE 
KURAL Ci-riLri-iEs SEKVICE 

FINANCIAL AND OPER4TlNG REPORT 
ELECTRIC DIS'FRlBlWlON - 

INSTRUCTIONS - See help in the online application. 

PART B. DATA ON TRANSMIS 

ITEM 
YEAR-TO-DATE 

LAST\'EAR I THIS YEAR 

1 ,  New Services Connected 

2 Services Retired 

(4 (6) 
373 20 

178 3' 

20 Accounts Receivable - Sales of Energy (Net) 3,215,83 
2 I Accounts Receivable - Other (Net) 8,67 

22 Renewble Energy Credits 

23 Maiwials and Supplies - Electric & Other 4,256,18 

3 Total Services i n  Place 

4. Idle Sewices 

24. Prepayments 593,19' 

25. Other Current and Accrued Assets I 283,84. 

43,221 43,38' 

14,221,66 T ~ h l  Current and Accrued Assets 
(I5 Ihtn 25) 

27. Regulatory Assets 
28. Other Deferred Debits 414,98 

109,752,49 Total Assets and Otber Debits 

3,381 
(Erclude Seusonals) 

BORROWER DESIGNATION 

1120013 

3,421 

PERIOD ENDED 
December, 2013 

)NAND DISTRIBLTION PLAhT 
YEAR-TO-DATE 

IASTYEAR I THISYEAR ITEM 

7 Miles Dislnhulion - 

8. Total Wiles Energized 

618 49 Underground 

(5+6+3 3,613.10 

I (4 1 (b) 
5. Miles Transmission 331.83 I 263.21 

~~ 

624. OS 

3,523.04 

6. Miles Distribulion - 
Overhead 

30. Memberships 
3 I .  Patronage Capital 
32. 
33. 

Operating Margins - Prior Ycars 
Operating Margins - Current Ynv 

34. Non-Operating Margins 
35. Mher hh!zins and Eouities 

2,662.781 2,634.98 

167,105 
27,108.76: 
(3,464,509) 

( 

C 
781.91C 

36. 
37. 
38. 
39. 

Total Mav-nins dG Equities (34 fhru 35) 
Long-Term Debt - RLJS (Nei) 
Long-Term Debt- FfB - RUS Cnarmteed 
Long-Tern Debt - Other - RUS Guaranteed 

24,593,272 
40,170,332 
27,953,425 

c 

44. Obligations Under Capital Leases ~ Noncurrent 
j. Accundaleci Operating Provisions 

and Asset Retirement Obliplations 
16. Total Other Nuncurrent Liabilities (44 f 45) 
47. Notes Pasablc 
48. Accounts Payable 

40 Long-Term Ueht other (Net) I 2 , 4 9  7 , 5 6 1  
4 I .  Long-Term Debt - RUS - Ecoii. Devel met) C 

C 

2,125,892 

2 I 125,893 
[ 

4,023,123 

42. Payments - Unapplied I c 
43. Totnl I~ong-Term Debt 

1371hm 41 - 42) 1 70,621,324 

49. Consumers Deposits I 1,204,472 

50. Current Matuntics Lon -Term Debt 3,055,151 
Cuneiit Maturities bng-Term Debt - h o n o m ~ c  Develo men1 
Current Maturitics Capital Lases 
Other Cumnt and Accrued Liabiliurs 1,512,503 

9,795,250 

53 

51. Total Current & Accrued Liabilities 
(47 thm S3) 

55.  Regulalory Liabilities C 
56. other Deferred Credib 2,616,75S 

109,752,499 57. Total Liabilities nod Other Credits 
(36 + 43 + 46 i 54 thru 56) 

RUS Financial and Operating Report Electric Distribntion Revision Date 2013 



UNITED S T A m  DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 
RURAL UTILITIES SERVICE 

FINANCIAL AND OPERATING REPORT 
ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION 

.NSTRUCTIONS - See help in the online application 
I 

~~ 

PART D. NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

BORROWER DESIGNATION 

AZO013 

PERIOD ENDED 
December, 2013 

RUS Financial and Operating Report E l s b i c  Disuiburion Revision Dab 20 13 



UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGXlCULTURE 
RURAL UTILITIES SERVICE 

FINANCIAL AND OPERATING REPORT 
ELECTRIC DfSTRIBUTION 

NSTRUCTIONS - See help in the online application. 
I 

BORROWER DESIGNATION 

AZO0 1 3 

PERIOD ENDED 
December, 2013 

RUS Financial and Operating Rcport Electric Distribution 

~ 

PART D. CERTIFICATION LOAN DEFAULT NOTES 

Revision Da~e 2013 



UNITED STATES DEPARThfEWOF AGRICULTI,RE 
RClML LJTILlTIES SERVICE 

FINANCIAL ANI) OPERATlNC REPORT 
ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION 

BORKOWER DESIGNATION 
AZO013 

PERlOD ENDED 
D e c e m b e r ,  2013 

150,538,114 

EAL.lh'CE 
PLANT ITEM BCGMNIMG OF YEAR ADDITLONS RETIREMENTS 

RIB Financial and Operating Report Electric Distribution Revision Dtrte 2013 

ADJLSTMENTS AND BALANCE 
TRARSFERS END OF YEAR 



UNITED STATES DEPARTMENTOF AGRICULTURE 
RURAL U T I L ~ I E S  SERVICE 

FMANCJAL AND OPERATWC REPORT 
ELECTRIC DISTRlBUTlON 

__ 
PART K. kWh PURCHASED AND TOTAL COST 

No iTEM SUPPLIER RENEWABLE RENEWABLE kWh TOTAL AVERAGE INCLUDED 1N INCLUDED IN 
CODE ENERGY FUEL PURCHASED cow COST TOTAL Con - TOTAL COST - 

PROGRAM IYPE (CentdkWh) FUEL C O S  WHEELlNC 
NAME ADJUSTMENT AND OTHER 

CHARGES 
(a) (b) (C) (d) (e) (0 (9) (h) (i) 

I PublicService 15473 397535,442 27,527,806 6.92 I Companv of NM 

BORROWER DESIGNATION 

AZO013 

2 

(INSTRUCTIONS - See help in the online application 

Westem Area Powcr 27000 24,726,191 736,540 2 98 
hdrnin 

lotai I 1 422,262,239 28,264,3461 6 69 

IpmoD-ED December. 2013 1 

RUS Financial and Operating Report Electric Distribution Revision Date 2013 



UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 
RURAL UTILITIES SERVICE 

INSTRUCTIONS -See help in the online application 

FINANCIAL AND OPERATING REPORT 
ELECTRIC DIflRII1LWON 

PERIOD ENDED 
Dccembcr. 20 I 3 

BORROWER DESlGNATION 

AZO0 13 

RUS Financial and Operating Report Electric Distribution Revision Date 2013 



UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 

FINANCIAL AND OPERATING REPORT 
ELECTRlC DISTRIBUTION 

BORROWER DESIGNATION 
RURAL IJTILITIES SERVICE 

Azo013 

NS'IRRIICTIONS - See help in the online application. PERIOD MDED 
December. 201 3 

PART L. LONG-TERM LEASES 
No NAME OF LESSOR TYPE OF PROPERTY RENTAL THIS YEAR 

(4 (b) (C) 

1 Anzona State Land land 15,669 

~~ 3 Hatch, h l ,  Larson Properties land 54,000 
TOTAL 70,689, 

2 S w p p  Land and Cattle land 1.000 

RUS Financial and Operating Report Ekctric Distribution Revision DBtc 2013 



UNIT'ED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULmRE BORROWER DE.SlGNATlON 
RURAL UlYLlTIFS SERVICE AZO013 

PERIOD ENDED FTNANCIAL AND OPERATING REPORT 
ELECrNC DISTRIBUTION December. 2013 

I 
INSTRUCTIONS - Sce help in the online application. 

I .  Date of last Annual Meeting 
PART M. ANMTAL MEETING A h 9  BOARD DATA 

2. Total Numbcr ofMcmbers 3. Numbcr o f  Members Present at Mming 4. Was Quonun Present? 

9 / 7 / 2  0 13 3 3 , 4 2 1  278 Y 

5.  Numbcr of Members Voting 6. Total Numbcr ol'Board Members 7. Total Amount of Fees and Expmses 8. Does Manasm Have 
by Proxy or Mail for Ruard Members Written Coniract? 

3 , 3 5 2  8 s 274,  900 N 

RIJS Financial and Operating Rcporf Electric Distribution Revision Date 2013 



UNITED STATES DEPARl’h4MENT OF AGIUCULTURE 
RURAL UTILITIES SERVICE 

BORROWER DESIGNATION 1 

~ 

Rural Utilities Service (Excludes RUS - 40,170,333 1332,352 1,366,376 2,898,728 
Economic Developrnenl Loans) 
Naliond Rural Utilities Cooperative Finance 2,497.562 180,515 450,153 630,668 
Corporation I I 

FINANCIAL AND OPERATING REPORT 
ELECTRIC DISIRIBLTION 

,NS’IRUCTJONS - See help in the online application. 

I 

RCIS Financial end Operating Reporf Elcctrie Distribution 

AZO0 13 

PERlOD ENDED 
December, 201 3 

Revision Dote 2013 

No ITEM BALANCE END OF INTEREST PRINCIPAL TOTAL 
YEAR (Billed This Year) (Billed l h i s  Year) (Billed This Year)  



D Oi'ERATlKiC REPORT 
December. 2013 

REVENUE RATA 

9 Sales for Resale - Other 

Revision Date 2013 RUS Finnncinl nnd Operating Report Eiectrir Dirtribufiun 



I l-,nDnn,,,c .R DLSIGNAIXON UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF A<;KICI:L'[IIRE 
KURqL UTILITIES SERVICE AZO013 1 

CLA.SSIFICATION 

I. Rcn'dmtinl Sales (cscluding seasonal) 
2. Rcsidmriat Sales - Seasonal 
3. irrigation Sales 

I ""RR"wL 

ADDED THIS Y E A R  TOTAL TO DATE 
No. of Amount Estimated No. of Ainount Estimated 

Invested MIMBTI!' Savings Consumers Jnvcsttd MMBTU Savings Consumers 
(3 e) (e) (4 le) # 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 0 0 



UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 
KURAL UTILITIB SERVICE 

FINANCIAL AND OPERATING REPORT 
ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION 

INVESTMENTS, LOAN CUAMNTEES AND LOANS 

I INSTRUCTIONS - Reporting of investments is required by 7 CFR 1717, Subpart N. lnvestmcnl categories rqorted on this Part correspond to Balance Sheet items in Part I C. Idcn~ifv ail investments in Rural Derelopmcnt with an 'X' in column [e). Both 'Included' and 'Excluded' Investments mus he reported See help in the online 

BORROWER DESIGNATION 
AZO0 13 

PERIOD ENDED 
December, 201 3 . 

61Cash -General I I I I 
I NEC Cash i50,316] I 

RUS Financial and Operating Rcport Elcctric Distribution - Invshncnts Rcvision Datc 2013 



UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF ACRICUL'I'UKE 
RURAL UTILITIES SERVICE 

PERIOD ENDED FWANCIAL AKD OPERATING REPORT 
ELECTRIC DISTRIB1lTlON 

INVESTMENTS LOAN GUARANTEES AND LOANS Decembcr, 2013 
1 

BORROWER DESIGNATION 
AZOO I3 

I 

INSTRUCTYONS - Reporting o f  inveslmenls is required by 7 CFR 1717, Subpart N. Invesbnent categories reported on this Pmt correspond to Balance Sheet items in P a  
C, Identify dl investments in Rural Development with an 'X' in column (e). Both 'Included' and 'Excluded' investments mud be reponed. See help in tk online 

PART Q. SECTION #I. LOAN G U ~ V T E E S  
NO ORGANIZATJON MATURITY DATE ORIGINAL AMOUNT LOAN BALANCE RURAL 

DEVELOPMENT 
(a) C) (e) (b) 

($1 
4 I TOTA L I I I I 

!TOTAL (Included Loan Guarantees Onlv) 

KUS Financial alld Operating Report Electric Distribution - Loan Guarantees Rwision Date 2013 



UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 
RURAL UTILITIES SERVICE 

PERIOD ENDED FINANCIAL AND OPERATING REPORT 
ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION 

INVESTMENTS, LOAN G U A R W E E S  AND LOANS December, 201 3 1 
MSTRUCTlONS - Reporting of investments is required by 7 CFR 1717, Subpart N. Investment categories reported on lhk Part correspond to Balance Sheet items in Part 
C. Idenlify all investments in Rural Development with an 'X m column (e). Both 'Included' and'Excluded' Inveshentsmwi be reportcd See help in the online 

BORROWER DESIGNATION 
AZO013 

R A T 1 0  OF MVESlMENlS AND LOAN GUARANTEES TO UTILITY PLANT 
[Total of Included Investments (Section I, 1 1  b) and Loan Guarantees - Loan Balancc (Scction 11, Sd) to Total Utility Plant (Line 3, Pad 
C) of this repoaj 

NO ORGAN IZATION 

I .M % 

MAlURlTY DATE ORIGINAL AMOUNT 
(9 

(b) C) 

12/1/2015 6.821 
12/1/2D15 58,698 

,-- 

LOAN BAMNCE R'CTRAI, 
DEVELOPMEkT 

(e! 

2,976 
34,467 

RUS Financial and Operating Report Electric Distribution - Loans Revision Date 2013 



ATTACHMENT 2 

NEC Audited Financial Statements 
Ending April 30,2014 



ARIZONA 13 NAVAJO 

NAVOPACHE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 

LAKESIDE, ARIZONA 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS WITH ACCOMPANYING INFORMATION 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED APRIL 30,2014 AND 2013 

AND 

REPORT OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

BOLINGER, SEGARS, GILBERT & Moss, L.L.P. 
C E R T l  Fl E D  PU B L l C  A C C  0 U NTANTS 

LUBBOCK. TEXAS 



ARIZONA 13 NAVAJO 

NAVOPACHE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 

LAKESIDE, ARIZONA 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS WITH ACCOMPANYING INFORMATION 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED APRIL 30,2014 AND 2013 

AND 

REPORT OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 



ARIZONA 13 NAVAJO 
NAVOPACHE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 

LAKESIDE, ARIZONA 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS WITH ACCOMPANYING INFORMATION 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED APRIL 30,2014 AND 2013 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Statement Page 
Identification No. 

Independent Auditor’s Report 

Financial Statements 

Balance Sheet 

Statement of Income and Patronage Capital 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Accompanying Information 

Independent Auditor’s Report on Accompanying Information 

Electric Plant Schedule 1 

Accumulated Provision for Depreciation Schedule 2 

Other Property and Investments Schedule 3 

Patronage Capital Schedule 4 

RUS, FFB, and CFC Mortgage Notes Schedule 5 

Five Year Comparative Data Schedule 6 

Compliance and Internal Control 

Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance with Aspects of Contractual 
Agreements and Regulatory Requirements for Electric Borrowers 

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance 
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of the Financial Statements 
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

Exhibit A 

Exhibit B 

Exhibit C 5 

6 

19 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

28 



BOLINGER, SEGARS, GILBERT & Moss, L.L.P. 
C E R T I F I E D  P U B L I C  A C C O U N T A N T S  

PHONE: I8061 747-3806 

FAX: (6061 747-38 1 5  

az I 5 NALHVILLE AVENUE 

LUBBOCK, TEXAS 79423-1954 

Independent Auditor’s Report 

Board of Directors 
Navopache Electric Cooperative, Inc. 
Lakeside, Arizona 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Navopache Electric Cooperative, Inc., (the 
Cooperative) which comprise the balance sheets as of April 30, 2014 and 2013, and the related 
statements of income and patronage capital and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related 
notes to the financial statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 

-1 - 
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Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Navopache Electric Cooperative, Inc. as of April 30, 2014 and 2013, and the results 
of their operations and cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Reporting Required by Governmenf Audifing Sfandard 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 24, 
2014 on our consideration of Navopache Electric Cooperative, Inc.’s internal control over financial 
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant 
agreements, and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide 
an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of 
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Navopache 
Electric Cooperative, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Certified Public Accountants 
Lubbock, Texas 

June 24,2014 

C 



UTILITY PLANT AT COST 
Electric Plant in Service 
Construction Work in Progress 
Electric Plant Acquisition Adjustment 

-3- 
NAVOPACHE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 

Exhibit A 
BALANCE SHEET 

APRIL 30,2014 AND 2013 

ASSETS 

Less: Accumulated Provision for Depreciation 

OTHER PROPERTY AND INVESTMENTS - AT COST OR STATED VALUE 
Notes Receivable 
Investments in Associated Organizations 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash - General 
Temporary Cash Investments -At  Cost 
Accounts and Notes Receivable (Less allowance for uncollectibles 

of $15,030 in 2014 and $60,507 in 2013) 
Interest and Rent Receivable 
Power Cost Adjustments - Undercollected 
Materials and Supplies 
Other Current and Accrued Assets 

DEFERRED CHARGES 

TOTAL ASSETS 

EQUITIES AND LIABILITIES 
EQUITIES 

Memberships 
Patronage Capital 
Other Equities (Deficit) 
Other Comprehensive Loss 

LONG-TERM DEBT 
RUS Mortgage Notes Less Current Maturities 
FFB Mortgage Notes Less Current Maturities 
CFC Mortgage Notes Less Current Maturities 

ACCUMULATED PROVISION FOR PENSIONS AND BENEFITS 
Post-retirement Benefits 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt 
Current Portion of APBO 
Accounts Payable - Purchased Power 
Accounts Payable - Other 
Accrued Payroll 
Consumers' Deposits and Prepayments 
Accrued Taxes 
Accrued Employee Compensated Absences 
Power Cost Adjustments - Overcollected 
Other Current and Accrued Liabilities 

DEFERRED CREDITS 

TOTAL EQUITIES AND LIABILITIES 

April 30, 
2014 201 3 

$ 146,494,547 $ 137,608,970 
7,982,094 8,945,033 

(1,543,661) (1,543,661) 
$ 152,932,980 $ 145,010,342 

58,231,451 55,849,438 
$ 94,701,529 $ 89,160,904 

$ 26,923 $ 35,274 
2,375,400 2,265,717 

$ 2,402,323 $ 2,300,991 

$ 1,078,813 $ 878,046 
7,i92,06a 9,139,013 

3,009,173 4,178,687 

746,797 
3,758,156 4,010,884 

364,184 94,739 

541,605 354,285 
$ 17,890,944 $ 17,455,506 

$ 115,517,110 $ 109,755,660 

$ 167,535 
27,620,763 
(1,992,627) 

57,000 
$ 25,852,671 

$ 39,837,912 
32,696,210 
2,422,330 

$ 74,956,452 

$ 1,355,600 

$ 2,935,000 
124,400 

4,582,133 
737,403 
445,281 

1,482,308 
553,474 
497,540 

14,992 
254,535 

$ 11,627,066 

$ 1,725,321 

$ 115,517,110 

$ 165,040 
26,224,127 
(2,364,543) 

(540,200) 
$ 23,484,424 

$ 41,282,267 
28,925,379 
2,837,594 

$ 73,045,240 

$ 1,989,400 

$ 2,851,000 
57,700 

2,147,026 
747,786 
399,848 

1,213,644 
565,239 
478,980 

88,745 
$ 8,549,968 

$ 2,686,628 

$ 109,755,660 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
__x I -_ I ~ x-~-- x " ^ _  - - x -  " x_ ~ I _  - /  -.-- - -  " _ _ _ x i  - 
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NAVOPACHE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND PATRONAGE CAPITAL 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED APRIL 30,2014 AND 2013 

April 30, 
2014 201 3 Increase 

% Amount % (Decrease) Amount 

$ 30,202,995 
899,589 

17,315,725 
1 15,032 

762,676 
(761,789) 

$ 48,534,228 

$ 26,542,363 
299,221 

1,982,945 
2,332,843 
2,620,784 

317,387 
5,828,671 
4,641,388 

49,604 
64,034 
27,540 

$ 44,706,780 

$ 3,827,448 

2,282,544 

$ 1,544,904 

191,540 

$ 1,736,444 

$ 135,054 
(19,674) 

$ 115,380 

$ 1,851,824 

597,200 

OPERATING REVENUE 
Residential 
Irrigation 
Commercial and Industrial 
Public Street and Highway Lighting 
Rent from Electric Property and Other 

Power Cost Adjustments (Over) Under Billed 
Electric Revenue 

Total Operating Revenue 

62.2 $ 33,122,564 
1.9 923,901 

35.7 18,528,686 
0.2 119,126 

60.3 $ (2,919,569) 
1.7 (24,312) 

33.7 (1,212,961) 
0.2 (4,094) 

1.4 (24,283) 
(2,190,137) 2.7 

100.0 $ (6,375,356) 

1.6 786,959 
(1.6) 1,428,348 

100.0 $ 54,909,584 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Purchased Power 
Transmission 
Distribution - Operation 
Distribution - Maintenance 
Consumer Accounts 
Customer Service and Information 
Administrative and General 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Taxes 
Other Interest 
Other Deductions 

Total Operating Expenses 

54.7 $ 
0.6 
4.1 
4.8 
5.4 
0.7 

12.0 
9.6 
0.1 
0.1 

33,398,043 
440,274 

2,611,798 
2,602,469 
2,881,754 

306,273 
5,208,685 
4,373,066 

51,166 
56,741 

60.8 $ 
0.8 
4.8 
4.7 
5.2 
0.6 
9.5 
8.0 
0.1 
0.1 

(6,855,680) 
(141,053) 
(628,853) 
(269,626) 
(260,970) 

11,114 
619,986 
268,322 

(1,562) 
7,293 

0.1 11,394 
92.2 $ 51,941,663 

0.0 16,146 
94.6 $ (7,234,8831 

OPERATING MARGINS - Before 
Fixed Charges 7.8 $ 2,967,921 5.4 $ 859,527 

FIXED CHARGES 
Interest on Long-Term Debt 4.7 2,253,658 4.1 28,886 

OPERATING MARGIN - After 
Fixed Charges 3.1 $ 714,263 1.3 $ 830,641 

Capital Credits 0.4 114,310 

3.5 $ 828,573 

0.2 77,230 

1.5 $ 907,871 NET OPERATING MARGIN 

NON-OPERATING MARGINS 
Interest and Dividend Income 
Other Non-Operating Income (Loss) 

0.3 $ 250,717 0.5 $ (115,663) 
0.0 1,777 0.0 (21,451) 
0.3 $ 252,494 0.5 $ (137,114) 

NET MARGIN 3.8 $ 1,081,067 2.0 $ 770,757 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) 
Current Year APBO Valuation Adjustment 
Post-retirement Benefit Amortization 

(310,700) 
5,900 

$ 776,267 

304.800 

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME $ 2,449,024 

(597,200) 

26,224,127 

(308,741) 
(146,447) 

$ 27,620,763 

Post-retirement Benefit Liability Adjustment 

PATRONAGE CAPITAL - BEGINNING OF YEAR 25,056,227 

Transfer Operating Loss to Other Equities 
Transfer Non-Operating Margins to Other Equities 
Patronage Capital Retired 

PATRONAGE CAPITAL - END OF YEAR 

294,118 
(71,348) 

(1 35,937) 

$ 26,224,127 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
~~ x -  " -__. -- ~~ -" I_^- x- ~~ _ _  
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NAVOPACHE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED APRIL 30,2014 AND 2013 

Exhibit C 

April 30, 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net Margin 
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Margin to Net Cash 

Provided by Operating Activities 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Capital Credits - Non Cash 
Accrued Post-retirement Accruals 
Deferred Charges 
Deferred Credits 
Accounts Receivable 
Inventories and Prepaid Expenses 
Payables and Accrued Expenses 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Additions to Utility Plant 
Salvage Value of Retirements and Other Credits 
Plant Removal Costs 
Other Property and Investments 

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Payments on Long-Term Debt to RUS and FFB 
Payments on Long-Term Debt to CFC 
Advances From FFB 
Payments on Post-retirement Benefits 
Memberships and Other Equities 
Patronage Capital Retired 

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 

CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION 
Cash Paid During the Year for: 

Interest 
Income Taxes 

2014 

$ 1,851,824 

5,076,097 
(191,540) 

19,786 
31 5,945 

(961,307) 
1,646,866 

65,408 

2013 

$ 1,081,067 

4,771,353 
(1 14,310) 
230,305 

(353,024) 
I ,I 03,279 

(1,227,700) 
(459,612) 

2,926,398 (1,654,025) 
$ 10,849,477 $ 3,377,333 

$ (10,461,698) 
193,208 

(348,232) 
90.208 

~ -1-- ~ 

$ (10,526,514) 

$ (2,556,524) 
(448,264) 

5,000,000 
(89,686) 
65,670 

(1 46,447) 
$ 1,824,749 

$ 2,147,712 

8,070,114 

$ 10,217,826 

$ 2,216,993 
$ 0 

$ (9,746,845) 
509,765 

(1 76,745) 
48.331 

$ (9,365,494) 

$ (2,336,985) 
(493,728) 

4,350,000 
(131,605) 

59,689 
(1 35,937) 

$ 1,311,434 

.$ (4,676,727) 

12,746,841 

$ 8,070,114 

$ 2,308,724 
s n 

The adjustment for the application of the accounting standards related to the accrued post-retirement benefit 
liability increased (decreased) the accrued post-retirement benefit liability by ($597,200) and $304,800, and 
changed equities by the same amount for 2014 and 2013, respectively. 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
- x x  I _ x  x- _" x l x "  _ - _ " - - * _  - 
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NAVOPACHE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

I. Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Nature of Operations 
Navopache Electric Cooperative, Inc. (the Cooperative) is a non-profit company organized under 
the laws of Arizona and New Mexico to provide electric service at the retail level to primarily 
residential and commercial accounts in a designated service area. Power delivered at retail is 
purchased wholesale from Public Service Company of New Mexico (PNM) and Western Area 
Power Administration. Revenues earned in excess of costs incurred are allocated to members of 
the Cooperative and are reflected as patronage capital equity on the balance sheet. 

System of Accounts 
The accounting records of the Cooperative are maintained in accordance with the Uniform System 
of Accounts as prescribed by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission for Class A and B 
electric utilities modified for electric borrowers of the Rural Utilities Service (RUS). 

Electric Plant, Maintenance, and Depreciation 
Electric plant is stated at the original cost of construction, which includes the cost of contracted 
services, direct labor, materials, and overhead items. Contributions from others toward the 
construction of electric plant are credited to the applicable plant accounts. 

When property which represents a retirement unit is replaced or removed, the average cost of 
such property as determined from the continuing property records is credited to electric plant and 
such costs, together with cost of removal less salvage value, is charged to the accumulated 
provision for depreciation. 

Maintenance and repairs, including the renewal of minor items of plant not comprising a 
retirement unit, are charged to the appropriate maintenance accounts, except that repairs of 
transportation and service equipment are charged to clearing accounts and redistributed to 
operating expense and other accounts. 

Inventories 
Materials and supplies inventories are valued at average unit cost. 

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 
The Cooperative provides an allowance for doubtful accounts to recognize the portion of 
receivables considered uncollectible. The allowance is estimated based on an aging of 
receivables as well as past collections experience. The Board of Directors approves the write 
offs of accounts on a monthly basis. Accounts written off are assigned-to a third party for 
collection. 

Electric Revenues 
The Cooperative's operating revenues are under the jurisdiction of the Arizona Corporation 
Commission and the New Mexico Public Regulation Commission. 
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NAVOPACHE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Cooperative records electric revenues as billed to customers on a monthly basis. Revenue 
is not accrued for the power that is delivered but not billed at the end of each month. The 
Cooperative’s tariffs for electric service include power cost adjustment clauses under which 
electric rates charged to customers are adjusted to reflect changes in the cost of power. As of 
April 30, 2014 and 2013, the Cooperative had delivered power for usage which had not yet been 
billed. It is estimated that the unbilled revenue amounted to $2,914,295 and $2,463,055 at April 
30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. 

Group Concentrations of Credit Risk 
The Cooperative’s headquarters facility is located in Pinetop-Lakeside, Arizona. The service area 
includes members located in a five county area surrounding the town of Pinetop-Lakeside. The 
Cooperative records a receivable for electric revenues as billed on a monthly basis. The 
Cooperative requires a deposit from its members upon connection, which is applied to unpaid 
bills and fees in the event of default. The deposit accrues interest annually and is returned along 
with accrued interest periodically. As of April 30, 2014 and 2013, deposits on hand totaled 
$1,191,074 and $986,592, respectively. 

The Cooperative maintains cash deposits at various financial institutions. Although all institutions 
are insured by an agency of the federal government, deposit amounts at times exceed insured 
amounts. 

Income Taxes 
The Cooperative is exempt from federal income taxes through Code Section 501(c)(12). The 
States of Arizona and New Mexico also recognize this exemption for State income tax purposes. 

The Cooperative follows the “uncertain tax positions” provisions of accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. The primary tax position of the Cooperative is its filing 
status as a tax exempt entity. The Cooperative determined that it is more likely than not that their 
tax positions will be sustained upon examination by the Internal Revenue Service (LRS) or other 
State taxing authority and that all tax benefits are likely to be realized upon settlement with taxing 
authorities. 

The Cooperative files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction. The Cooperative is no 
longer subject to U.S. federal and state income tax examinations by federal taxing authorities for 
years before 201 0. 

The Cooperative recognizes interest accrued related to income tax activities in interest expense 
and penalties in operating expenses. There were no penalties or interest recognized during the 
years ended April 30,2014 and 2013. 

Patronage Capital Certificates 
Patronage capital from associated organizations is recorded at the stated amount of the 
certificates. 

Statement of Cash Flows 
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and temporary cash investments reflected on 
the balance sheet are considered cash and cash equivalents. 
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NAVOPACHE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues 
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Reclassifications 
Certain amounts in the prior year financial statements have been reclassified for comparative 
purposes to conform with the presentation in the current year financial statements. 

Assets Pledged 

All assets are appropriately pledged as security for the long-term debt due RUS, Federal Financing 
Bank (FFB), and the National Rural Utilities Cooperative Finance Corporation (CFC). 

Electric Plant 

The major classes of electric plant are as follows: 

Intangible Plant 
Generation Plant 
Transmission Plant 
Distribution Plant 

April 30, 
2014 2013 

$ 298 $ 298 
2,393,103 2,393,103 

12,055,778 12,055,778 
108,692,645 100,381,949 

General Plant 23,352,723 22,777,842 

Total Electric Plant in Service 
Construction Work in Progress 
Electric Plant Acquisition Adjustment 

Total Electric Plant 

$ 146,494,547 $ 137,608,970 
7,982,094 8,945,033 
(1,543,661) (1,543,661) 

$ 152,932,980 $ 145,010,342 

Provision has been made for depreciation of transmission and distribution plant at straight-line 
composite rates of 2.75% and 3.24% - 6.72%, respectively. 
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NAVOPACHE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

General plant depreciation rates have been applied on a straight-line basis and are as follows: 

Structures and Improvements 
ORce Furniture and Fixtures 
Transportation Equipment 
Store Equipment 
Tools, Shop, and Garage Equipment 
Laboratory Equipment 
Power Operated Equipment 
Com m unication Equipment 
Miscellaneous 

3.35 - 10.00% 
3.35 - 33.30% 
5.00 - 20.00% 

6.66% 
6.66 - 20.00% 
5.00 - 20.00% 
5.00 - 20.00% 
1.59 - 20.00% 
6.66 - 10.00% 

Depreciation and amortization for the years ended April 30, 2014 and 2013 were $5,076,097 and 
$4,771,353, respectively, of which $4,641,388 and $4,373,066 were charged to depreciation and 
amortization expense, and $434,709 and $398,287 were allocated to other accounts. The 
Cooperative accelerated depreciation on retired meters during the year for their AMI project. Total 
accelerated depreciation for the years ended April 30, 2014 and 201 3 were $201,504 and $232,229, 
respectively . 

The amount of ($1,543,661) shown as Electric Plant Acquisition Adjustment represents the net book 
value at the time of the donation of a donated substation and three donated towers. The acquisition 
adjustment of the substation will be amortized over 20 years and the acquisition adjustment of the 
towers will be amortized over 50 years. Amortization for the years ended April 30, 2014 and 2013 
was $50,573 and $50,573. 

Investments in Associated Organizations 

Investments in associated organizations consisted of the following as of April 30, 2014 and 201 3: 

C FC 
Capital Term Certjficates 
Patronage Capital 
Mern ber Capital Securities 

Other 

Ami1 30. 
2014 2013 

$ 1,317,496 $ 1,322,303 
300,724 291,443 

657,180 551,971 

$ 2,375,400 $ 2,265,717 

100,000 100,000 
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5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Materials and Supplies 

Materials and supplies consist of: 

h r i l  30. 

Construction Materials and Supplies 
Merchandise For Resale 

Deferred Charges 

Deferred charges include the following: 

201 4 201 3 

$ 3,653,450 $ 3,903,316 
104,706 107,568 

$ 3,758,156 $ 4,010,884 

April 30, 
2014 201 3 

R & S Deferral $ 228,991 $ 225,486 
SRP Transmission Connection Deposit 277,500 277,500 
Inventory Adjustment 335,273 
Other 15,823 

$ 522,314 $ 838,259 

Return of Capital 

Return of capital is a discretionary act of the governing body as regulated by the provisions of the 
Internal Revenue Service code for nontaxable entities. Under the provisions of the mortgage 
agreements, until the equities and margins equal or exceed 30.00% of the total assets of the 
Cooperative, the return to patrons of capital contributed by them is limited to the discretion of the 
Board as the governing body and generally to 25.00% of the patronage capital or margins received 
by the Cooperative in the prior calendar year. The equities and margins excluding other 
comprehensive income of the Cooperative represent 22.33% of total assets at the balance sheet 
date. Patronage capital to estates totaling $146,447 and $135,937 were retired during the years 
ended April 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. 

Patronage Capital 

Assigned 
Assignable 

Less: Retired 

April 30, 
201 4 201 3 

$ 30,939,536 $ 28,754,370 
661,755 1,303,838 

$ 31,601,291 $ 30,058,208 
(3,980,528) (3,834,081 ) 

$ 27,620,763 $ 26,224,127 
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9. Other Equities (Deficit) 

Ami1 30. 

Donated Capital 
Undelivered Checks 
Operating Deficits 

2014 2013 

$ 588,942 $ 585,706 
733,181 673,242 

(3,314,750) (3,623,49 1) 

$ (1,992,627) $ (2,364,543) 

The Cooperative uses non-operating margins to offset operating deficits. 

I O .  Mortgage Notes - RUSlFFB 

RUS 
Long-term debt due RUS is represented by 35-year mortgage notes payable to the United States of 
America. Following is a summary of long-term debt due RUS and maturing at various times between 
2018 and 2040: 

April 30, 
2014 201 3 

0.1 1 YO Notes 
2.37% Notes 
2.66% Notes 
2.75% Notes 
4.22% Notes 
4.38% Notes 
4.84% Notes 
5.00% Notes 

Less: Current Maturities 

$ 6,793,226 $ 7,025,020 
4,512,453 4,623,616 
3,194,953 3,285,762 
3,336,080 3,436,064 
3,330,958 3,392,446 
3,322,411 3,382,097 
5,430,825 5,521,946 

1 1,421,006 12,113,316 

$ 41,341,912 $ 42,780,267 
1,504,000 1,498,000 

$ 39,837,912 $ 41,282,267 

Principal and interest installments on the above notes are due in quarterly and monthly amounts. As 
of April 30, 2014, annual maturities of long-term debt due RUS for the next five years are as follows: 

201 5 
2016 
201 7 
201 8 
201 9 

$ 1,504,000 
1,560,000 
1,618,000 
1,620,000 
1,515,000 
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Federal Financing Bank (FFB) 

Long-term debt due FFB is represented by 33-year mortgage notes payable to the United States of 
America. Following is a summary of the long-term debt due FFB as of April 30, 2014 and 2013: 

April 30, 
2014 201 3 

1.04% Notes 
1.79% Notes 
1.81 % Notes 
2.30% Notes 
2.74% Notes 
3.48% Notes 
3.59% Notes 

$ 6,946,565 $ 7,251,908 
1,201,010 1,253,802 
5,a16,794 6,000,000 
4,217,176 4,350,000 
2,166,667 2,261,905 
5,000,000 
3,527,132 3,682,171 

4.43% Notes 1,834,677 1,915,323 
4.66% Notes 1 ,I 96,167 1,229,862 
5.27% Notes 1,806,022 1,885,408 

$ 33,712,210 $ 29,830,379 
Less: Current Maturities 1,016,000 905,000 

$ 32,696,210 $ 28,925,379 

Principal and interest installments on the above notes are due quarterly. As of April 30, 2014, annual 
maturities on long-term debt due FFB for the next five years are as follows: 

201 5 
2016 
201 7 
201 8 
201 9 

$ 1,016,000 
1,042,000 
1,069,000 
1,096,000 
1 ,I 25,000 

These notes are guaranteed by RUS. The Cooperative has $33,979,000 of unadvanced funds 
available. 

11. Mortgage Notes - CFC 

Following is a summary of long-term debt due CFC and maturing at various times from 2015 to 2028: 

Fixed Rate Notes - 4.1 0% - 6.50% 
Less: Current Maturities 

April 30, 
2014 201 3 

$ 2,837,330 $ 3,285,594 
415,000 448,000 

$ 2,422,330 $ 2,837,594 
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Principal and interest installments on the above notes are due quarterly. As of April 30, 2014, annual 
maturities of long-term debt due CFC for the next five years are as follows: 

201 5 
2016 
2017 
2018 
201 9 

$ 41 5,000 
354,000 
31 1,000 
290,000 
225,000 

12. Short-Term Borrowing 

The Cooperative has a $6,800,000 line of credit for short-term financing from National Rural Utilities 
Cooperative Finance Corporation at a variable interest rate, with an expiration date of April 9, 2015. 
As of April 30, 2014 and 2013, the Cooperative had no outstanding balances on this line of credit. 

13. Deferred Credits 

Deferred credits consisted of the following: 

April 30, 
2014 201 3 

Refundable Construction Advances 
Unclaimed Checks 
Accrued Consumer Deposit Interest 
Envi ronm en ta I Portfolio 
PNM Refund 
Other 

$ 247,733 $ 247,733 
3,532 5,948 

155,292 1 36,146 
1,062,260 637,119 

247,400 1,651,643 
9,104 8,039 

$ 1,725,321 $ 2,686,628 

Refundable Construction Advances represent refundable aid to construction on line extensions and 
subdivision construction contracts. Amounts are refunded annually based on the revenue generated 
from the member that originally paid the aid to construction. Any amounts not refunded to the 
member after five years are forfeited to the Cooperative. 

Environmental Portfolio represents collections from members to be used in the installation of plant 
qualifying for environmental portfolio status through the Cooperative’s service area. 

The Cooperative reached a settlement agreement with PNM for payments recovered from the 
Cooperative associated with APS Transmission Service and to the Salt River Project. The 
Cooperative received $2,273,737 for the APS Transmission Service and $203,728 for the Salt River 
Project in 2013, and they received an additional $2,968,795 in 2014. The Cooperative is refunding 
the amounts to its members through the power cost adjustment. As of April 30, 2014 and 2013, 
$4,373,039 and $825,822 have been refunded to its members. 
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14. Pension Benefits 

Narrative Description 
The National Rural Electric Cooperative Association (NRECA) Retirement Security Plan (RS Plan) 
is a defined benefit pension plan qualified under Section 401 and tax-exempt under Section 501 (a) 
of the Internal Revenue Code. It is considered a multi-employer plan under the accounting 
standards. The Plan sponsor’s Employer Identification Number is 53-01 16145 and the Plan 
Number is 333. 

A unique characteristic of a multi-employer plan compared to a single employer plan is that all plan 
assets are available to pay benefits of any plan participant. Separate asset accounts are not 
maintained for participating employers. This means that assets contributed by one employer may 
be used to provide benefits to employees of other participating employers. 

Plan Information 
The Cooperative contributions to the RS Plan in 2013 and 2012 represented less than 5 percent of 
the total contributions made to the Plan by all participating employers. The Cooperative made 
contributions to the Plan of $1,383,962 in fiscal year 2014 and $1,270,428 in fiscal year 2013. 
There have been no significant changes that affect the comparability of fiscal years 2014 and 2013 
contributions. 

For the RS Plan, a “zone status” determination is not required, and therefore not determined, under 
the Pension Protection Act (PPA) of 2006. In addition, the accumulated benefit obligations and plan 
assets are not determined or allocated separately by individual employer. In total, the RS Plan was 
over 80 percent funded on January 1, 2013 and between 65 percent and 80 percent funded on 
January 1, 2012 based on the PPA funding target and PPA actuarial value of assets on those 
dates. 

Because the provisions of the PPA do not apply to the RS Plan, funding improvement plans and 
surcharges are not applicable. Future contribution requirements are determined each year as part 
of the actuarial valuation of the Plan and may change as a result of plan experience. 

The employees also participate in a 401-K plan, a defined contribution plan provided through 
NRECA. Contributions to the plan by the Cooperative were $375,536 and $376,403 for 2014 and 
201 3, respectively. 

15. Post-retirement Benefits 

The Cooperative provides post-retirement benefits for eligible employees and directors through a 
plan with NRECA. 
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A summary of the plan is as follows: 

Medical Benefits - Health Insurance Premiums 

Eligibility Bargaining union employees who have reached age 55 with seven or 
more years continuous service - half of premium cost; certain salaried 
employees who were retired on or prior to January 1, 1996; directors 
elected or appointed prior to January 1, 1996, retiring with 10 or more 
years continuous service - half of premium cost. 

Current retirees, active employees, and directors are covered. Covered Group 

Period of Coverage Lifetime. 

Type of Plan Electrecomp PPO Plan with NRECA. 

Actuarial Cost Method 

The method used is the projected unit credit cost method as prescribed in generally accepted 
accounting principles in the United States. 

Economic Assumptions 

The discount rate used to develop the accumulated post-retirement benefit obligation was 4.5%. 
The assumed health care cost trend rate was 7.0% for 2014, declining to a level of 5.0% for 2022. 

Amounts recognized in the Cooperative's April 30, 2014 and 2013, financial statements and funded 
status of the plan are as follows: 

April 30, 

(I) Net Post-retirement Benefit Cost: 
Interest Cost 
Service Cost 
Amortization ofktuarial Loss 

(11) Accumulated Post-retirement Benefit 
Obligation (APBO) Reconciliation 

APBO Balance at Beginning of Year 
Interest Cost 
Service Cost 
Actuarial Loss 
Benefits Paid 
Net Post-retirement Benefit Liability 
at End of Year 

2014 201 3 

$ 62,800 $ 61,800 
85,800 85,600 

5,900 

$ 148,600 $ 153,300 

$ (2,047,100) $ (1,643,600) 
(62,800) (6 1,800) 
(85,800) (85,600) 
597,200 (31 0,700) 
1 18,500 54,600 

$ (1,480,000) $ (2,047,100) 
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(111) Funded Status 
Accumulated Post-retirement Benefit Obligation $ (1,480,000) 
Fair Value of Plan Assets 

Accrued Post-retirement Benefit Cost $ (1,480,000) 

(IV) Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss 
Actuarial Loss - Beginning of Year $ (540,200) 
Actuarial Loss 597,200 

Other Comprehensive Loss $ 57,000 

$ (2,047,100) 

$ (2,047,100) 

$ (235,400) 
(304.800) 

$ (540,200) 

The Cooperative had not funded plan assets as of April 30, 2014. 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires an employer that sponsors a 
defined benefit post-retirement plan to report the current economic status (the overfunded or 
underfunded status) of the plan in its balance sheet, to measure the plan assets and plan obligations 
as of the balance sheet date, and to include enhanced disclosures about the plan. 

The estimated actuarial loss and prior service cost for the post-retirement medical benefit plan that 
will be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive income into net post-retirement benefit cost 
over the next fiscal year is expected to be $0. 

Estimated future benefit payments for the next five years and the subsequent five years thereafter 
are as follows: 

201 5 
201 6 
201 7 
201 8 
201 9 

Disclosures About Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

$ 124,400 
46,700 
48,500 
38,400 
41,100 

Many of the Cooperative’s financial instruments lack an available market with similar terms, 
conditions, and maturities as those reflected in the carrying amount recorded. Accordingly, 
significant assumptions, estimations, and present value calculations were used for purposes of this 
disclosure. 

Estimated fair value has been determined by calculating the present value of financial instruments 
using the best available data. 
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Fair value for amounts carried on the financial statements has not been reflected for the following 
reasons: 

Patronage Capital from Associated Organizations - The right to receive cash is an inherent 
component of a financial instrument. The Cooperative holds no right to receive cash since any 
payments are at the discretion of the governing body for the associated organizations. As such, 
patronage capital from associated organizations is not considered financial instruments. 

CFC Capital Term Certificates - It is not practicable to estimate fair value for these financial 
instruments given the lack of a market and their long holding period. Relevant information with 
respect to these is as follows: 

In teres t 
Amount Rate Maturity 

$ 50,742 0.00% 2022 
296,950 3.00% 2020-2030 
969,804 5.00% 2070-2080 

CFC Long-Term Debt Fixed Rate - Estimated by computing the present value by individual note to 
maturity, using currently quoted or offered rates for similar issues of debt. The year-end CFC fixed 
interest rate for long-term debt re-pricing every seven years was used in the calculation for all fixed 
rate long-term debt. The carrying value of the Cooperative’s fixed rate debt and the estimated fair 
value is as  follows: 

As ofApril 30,2014 

Fair 
Carrying Value Value 

$ 2,837,330 $ 3,008,358 

RUS and FFB Long-Term Debt - The fair value ol the Cooperative’s RUS and FFB long-term debt is 
calculated by computing the present value of the individual notes to maturity. The discount rate used 
is the currently available CFC fixed interest rate available for long-term debt re-pricing every seven 
years. The alternative financing reflected is not available to the Cooperative without the Cooperative 
withdrawing from the RUS program, and that is not contemplated at this time. 

As ofApril 30,2014 

Carrying Fair 
Value Value 

$ 75,054,122 $ 58,108,357 

Fair Value Hierarchy 
The Fair Value Measurements Topic of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification 
establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to 
measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in 
active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest 
priority to measurements involving significant unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). 
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The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows: 

Level 1- inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities that the Cooperative has the ability to access at the measurement date. 

Level 2- inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the 
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. 

Level 3- inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 

Long-Term Debt valuations are considered Level 2. 

17. Litigation, Commitments, and Contingencies 

Management has represented there is no litigation pending against or involving the Cooperative 
which would have a material impact on the financial statements. 

18. Subsequent Events 

The Cooperative has evaluated subsequent events through June 24, 2014, the date which the 
financial statements were available to be issued. 
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BOLINGER, SEGARS, GILBERT & Moss, L.L.P. 
C E R T I F I E D  P U B L I C  A C C O U N T A N T S  

PHONE: (aosi 747-3mos 

FAX: (a061 747-38 1 5  

8 2  1 5  NASHVILLE AVENUE 

LUBBOCK, TEXAS 79423-1954 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON 
ACCOMPANYING INFORMATION 

We have audited the financial statements of Navopache Electric 
Cooperative, Inc., as of and for the years ended 2014 and 2013, and our 
report thereon dated June 24, 2014, which expressed an unmodified 
opinion on those financial statements appears on pages 1 and 2. Our 
audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the 
financial statements as a whole. The schedule of electric plant, 
accumulated provision for depreciation, other property and investments, 
patronage capital, mortgage notes, and five year comparative data are 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part 
of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of 
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. 
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly 
stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a 
whole. 

Lubbock, Texas 

June 24,2014 
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Certified Public Accountants 
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ELECTRIC PLANT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED APRIL 30,2014 

Additions 
and 

Transfers 
Balance 

05/01 1201 3 
Balance 

04/3012014 Retirements 
CLASSIFIED ELECTRIC PLANT IN SERVICE 

Intangible Plant $ 298 $ 0 $ 0 $ 298 

Generation Plant 
Miscellaneous Power Plant Equipment $ 2,393,103 $ 0 $ 0 $ 2,393,103 

Transmission Plant 
Land and Land Rights 
Station Equipment 
Poles, Towers, and Fixtures 
Overhead Conductors and Devices 
Roads and Trails 

Total 

$ 9,302 
2,770,462 
5,052,506 
4,214,772 

$ $ $ 9,302 
2,770,462 
5,052,506 
4,214,772 

8,736 
$ 12,055,778 

8,736 
$ 12,055,778 $ 0 $ 0 

Distribution Plant 
Land and Land Rights 
Structures and Improvements 
Station Equipment 
Poles, Towers, and Fixtures 
Overhead Conductors and Devices 
Underground Conductors and Devices 
Conductors 
Line Transformers 
Services 
Meters 
Street Lights and Signal Systems 

Total 

$ $ $ 56,326 
996 

11,458,800 
18,121,438 
18,996,698 
14,298,459 

939,495 
20,350,045 
6,806,643 

16,729,459 

$ 56,326 
996 

11,458,800 
1 7,047,955 
17,043,851 
13,451,960 

939,495 
19,416,287 
6,792,859 

13,303,182 
870,238 

$ 100,381,949 

1,245,736 
2,171,074 

926,121 

172,253 
218,227 
79,622 

1,717,916 
14,187 

4,274,623 
95,995 

$ 10,445,652 

784,158 
403 

848,346 
31,947 

$ 2,134,956 
934,286 

$ 108,692,645 

General Plant 
Land and Land Rights 
Structures and Improvements 
Office Furniture and Equipment 
Transportation Equipment 
Store Equipment 
Tools, Shop, and Garage Equipment 
Laboratory Equipment 
Power Operated Equipment 
Communications Equipment 
Miscellaneous Equipment 

Total 

$ 
296,127 
74,675 

274,278 
13,321 
25,035 
4,229 

260,379 
22,420 

$ 529,016 
10,321,597 
2,047,143 
2,810,794 

168,080 
397,738 
767,986 

2,499,987 
3,654,425 

$ 529,016 
10,025,470 
1,997,579 
2,894,305 

154,759 
373,916 
763,757 

2,259,599 
3,632,005 

147,436 
$ 22,777,842 

$ 137,608,970 
8,945,033 

(1,543,661) 

$ 145,010,342 

25,111 
357,789 

1,213 

19,991 

8,521 
$ 978,985 

155,957 
$ 23,352,723 $ 404,104 

$ 2,539,060 Total Classified Electric Plant in Service 
Construction Work in Progress 
Electric Plant Acquisition Adjustment 

$ 11,424,637 
(962,939) 

$ 146,494,547 
7,982,094 

(1,543,661) 

Total Utility Plant $ 10,461,698 $ 2,539,060 $ 152,932,980 
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Schedule 2 

CLASSIFIED ELECTRIC PLANT IN SERVICE 

Miscellaneous Power Plant Equipment 

Transmission Plant 

Distribution Plant 

General Plant 
Structures and Improvements 
Office Furniture and Fixtures 
Transportation Equipment 
Store Equipment 
Tools, Shop, and Garage Equipment 
Laboratory Equipment 
Power Operated Equipment 
Communications Equipment 
Miscellaneous Equipment 
Gain on General Plant 

Total General Plant 

Total Classified Electric Plant in Service 

Amortization of Electric Plant Acquisition 
Intangible Plant 

Retirement Work in Progress 

Total Electric Plant 

Balance 
05/01/2013 

$ 582,739 

$ 7,047,283 

$ 37,107,051 

$ 1,670,903 
1,784,953 
2,532,451 

216,130 
333,272 
653,300 

1,500,778 
2,668,207 

119,233 
297,755 

$ 11,676,982 

$ 56,414,055 

(330,743) 

(233,874) 

$ 55,849,438 

(1) Charged to Depreciation and Amortization Expense 
Charged to Clearing and Other Expense Accounts 

(2) Cost of Units Retired 
Add: Cost of Removal 
Less: Salvage and Other Credits 

Loss Due to Retirements 

Accruals and Balance 
Transfers Reti rem en ts 04l30l2014 

$ 72,364 $ 0 $ 655,103 

$ 331,037 $ 0 $ 7,378,320 

$ 3,822,504 $ 2,387,307 $ 38,542,248 

$ 320,102 
79,996 

175,089 
1 1,023 
19,760 
36,315 

169,724 
84,126 
4,630 

$ $ 1,991,005 
25,111 1,839,838 

294,502 2,413,038 
127,153 

1,213 351,819 
689,615 

19,991 1,650,511 
2,752,333 

123,863 
(58,002) 355,757 

$ 900,765 $ 282,815 $ 12,294,932 

$ 5,126,670 $ 2,670,122 $ 58,870,603 

(50,573) (381,316) 

23,962 (257,836) 

$ 5,076,097 $ 2,694,084 $ 58,231,451 

$ 4,641,388 
434,709 

$ 5,076,097 

$ 2,539,060 
348,232 
193,208 

$ 2,694,084 
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OTHER PROPERTY AND INVESTMENTS 
APRIL 30,2014 AND 2013 

Schedule 3 

April 30, 
201 4 201 3 

NOTES RECEIVABLE 
Weatherization Loans 
Other 

Total Notes Receivable 

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED ORGANIZATIONS 

Grand Canyon State Electric Cooperatives, Inc. 
Electric Resources & Manufacturing Cooperative, Inc. 
CFC 

Electric Resources & Manufacturing Cooperative, Inc. 
NlSC 
CFC 
Western United 
Arkansas Electric Cooperative, Inc. 
Other 

CFC 

Memberships 

Patronage Capital 

Capital Term Certificates 

CFC - Member Capital Securities 
Grand Canyon State Electric Cooperatives, Inc. - Building 
Federated Insurance Equity 

Total Investments in Associated Organizations 

TOTAL OTHER PROPERTY AND INVESTMENTS 

$ 22,860 $ 33,303 
4,063 1,970 

$ 26.923 $ 35,273 

$ 100 
100 

1 .ooo 

200,337 
128,809 
300,724 
25,813 
1,200 

366 

1,317,496 
100,000 
39,847 

259,608 
$ 2,375,400 

$ 2,402,323 

$ 100 
100 

1,000 

209,234 
102,731 
291,443 

1,200 
366 

1,322,304 
100,000 
25,933 

21 1,307 
$ 2,265,718 

$ 2,300,991 
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APRIL 30,2014 

Calendar 
Year Assigned 

1973 and Prior $ 2,496,022 
1974 
1975 
1976 
1977 
1978 
1979 
1980 
1981 
1982 
1983 
1984 
1985 
1986 
1987 
1988 
1989 
1993 
1994 
1995 
1996 
2002 
2003 
2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
201 0 
201 3 
201 4 

Note: 

239,987 
69,471 

135,025 
2 34,025 
394,439 
636,186 
342,690 
194,500 
185,978 
440,782 

1,119,480 
300,089 
599,574 

1,113,700 
608,306 
486,743 
979,412 

1,262,500 
714,276 
778,542 

1,375,953 
1,651,371 
2,116,361 
1,688,496 
2,148,158 
2,574,429 
2,140,057 

636,599 
1,091,219 
2,185,166 

$ 30,939,536 

!3 

Assignable Retired 

$ 2,496,022 
20,233 

5,857 
11,585 
18,696 
30,316 
45,179 
24,040 
12,489 
12,257 
30,539 
82,341 
23,652 
47,597 
91,184 
48,331 
39,390 
76,700 

100,783 
57,983 
61,926 
78,035 
95,571 

11 3,008 
83,935 
91,111 
86,159 
61,209 
14,938 
19,462 

661,755 

$ 661,755 $ 3,980,528 

Schedule 4 

Balance 

$ 
21 9,754 

63,614 
123,440 
215,329 
364,123 
591,007 
31 8,650 
182,011 
173,721 
41 0,243 

1,037,139 
276,437 
551,977 

1,022,516 
559,975 
447,353 
902,712 

1 , I  61,717 
656,293 
716,616 

1,297,918 
1,555,800 
2,003,353 
1,604,561 
2,057,047 
2,488,270 
2,078,848 

621,661 
1,071,757 
2,185,166 

661,755 

$ 27,620,763 

There were no assignments for the years 1990, 1991, 1992, 1997, 1998, 1999, 2000, 
2001,201 1, and 201 2 due to losses sustained. 



Date of 
Note 

01-26-83 
01 -26-83 
03-05-87 
03-05-87 
03-03-93 
03-03-93 
08-0 1 -96 
08-01 -96 
08-01 -96 
08-0 1 -96 
08-01 -96 
08-01 -96 
10-03-05 
10-03-05 
10-03-05 
10-03-05 
10-03-05 
10-03-05 
10-03-05 

Total RUS 

06-1 7-03 
11-1 9-04 
11-23-04 
04-04-05 
05-09-06 
05-12-06 
05-31 -06 
1 2-1 6-1 1 
09-21 -1 2 
01 -02-14 

Unadvanced Notes 

Total FFB 

06-01 -96 
06-0 1 -96 
06-0 1 -96 
06-01-96 
06-0 1 -96 
09-1 8-03 
09-1 8-03 
09-18-03 

Total CFC 
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RUS, FFB, AND CFC MORTGAGE NOTES 
APRIL 30,2014 

Schedule 5 

RUS Mortgage Notes 

Interest 
Rate 

5.00% 
5.00% 
5.00% 
5.00% 
5.00% 
5.00% 
5.00% 
5.00% 
5.00% 
5.00% 
5.00% 
5.00% 
4.84% 
0.11% 
2.37% 
2.75% 
2.66% 
4.38% 
4.22% 

1.04% 
4.66% 
3.59% 
2.74% 
1.79% 
4.43% 
5.27% 
1.81% 
2.30% 
3.48% 

3.75% 
4.10% 
4.10% 
6.00% 
6.50% 
5.65% 
5.70% 
5.70% 

Principal Amount Principal Net 
Amount Unadvanced Repayments Obligation 

$ 1,780,500 
1,780,500 
3,029,000 
3,029,000 
1,766,000 
1,766,000 
2,000.000 
1,520,000 
1,500,000 
2,100,000 
1,026,000 

183,663 
6,000,000 
8,000,000 
5,000,000 
3,731,000 
3,500,000 
3,500,000 
3,500,000 

$ $ 1,406,772 
1,404,081 
1,818,961 
1,781,405 

676,102 
645,658 
570,777 
433,791 
421,516 
576,969 
276 I 877 
46,748 

569,175 
1,206,774 

487,547 
394,920 
305,047 
177,589 
169,042 

$ 373,728 
376,419 

1,210,039 
1,247,595 
1,089,898 
1 ,I 20,342 
1,429,223 
1,086,209 
1,078,484 
1,523,031 

749,123 
136,915 

5,430,825 
6,793,226 
4,512,453 
3,336,080 
3,194,953 
3,322,411 
3,330,958 

0 $ 13,369,751 $ 41,341,912 $ 54,711,663 $ 

FFB Mortgage Notes 

$ 10,000,000 
1,443,000 
5,000,000 
3,000,000 
1,649,739 
2,500,000 
2,421,261 
6,000,000 
4,350,000 
5,000,000 

33,979,000 

$ 75,343,000 

$ $ 3,053,435 
246,833 

1,472,868 
833,333 
448,729 
665,323 
615,239 
183,206 
132,824 

33,979,000 

$ 33,979,000 

CFC Mortgage Notes 

$ 7,651,790 

$ 430,000 
1,399,000 
1,607,000 
2,704,167 
1,559,794 

416,009 
224,754 
187,042 

$ $ 430,000 
1,250,533 
1.21 3,260 
1,466,789 

553,700 
402,320 
193,451 
180,383 

$ 6,946,565 
1,196,167 
3,527,132 
2,166,667 
1,201,010 
1,834,677 
1,806,022 
5,816,794 
4,217,176 
5,000,000 

$ 33,712,210 

$ 
148,467 
393,740 

1,237,378 
1,006,094 

13,689 
31,303 
6,659 

$ 8,527,766 $ 0 $ 5,690,436 $ 2,837,330 

Net obligation includes $1,504,000 due RUS, $1,016,000 due FFB and $415,000 due CFC payable within one 
year and classified as current liabilities on the balance sheet. 
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FIVE YEAR COMPARATIVE DATA 
Schedule 6 

April 30, 
2014 201 3 2012 201 0 201 1 

OPERATING REVENUE 
Residential 
Irrigation 
Commercial and Industrial 
Public Buildings and Other Authorities 
Rent from Electric Properly and Other Electric Revenue 
Power Cost Adjustment (Over) Underbilled 

Total Operating Revenue 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Purchased Power 
Transmission 
Distribution - Operation 
Distribution - Maintenance 
Consumer Accounts 
Customer Service and Information 
Administrative and General 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Taxes 
Other Interest 
Other Deductions 

Total Operating Expenses 

OPERATING MARGINS - Before Fixed Charges 

FIXED CHARGES 
interest on Long-Term Debt 

OPERATING MARGINS (LOSS) -After Fixed Charges 
Capital Credits 

NET OPERATING MARGINS (LOSS) 

NON-OPERATING MARGINS 
Interest Income 
Other Non-Operating income (Loss) 

$ 30,202,995 
899,589 

17,315,725 
11 5,032 
762,676 

$ 29,073,867 
699,407 

15,472,636 
107,649 
647,629 

$ 26,572.826 
605,030 

14,267,094 
99,822 

768,869 

$ 25,803,003 
519,146 

13,435,037 
92,018 

675,625 

$ 33,122,564 
923,901 

18,528,686 
119,126 
786,959 

1,428,348 
$ 54,909,584 

793,410 
$ 43,107,051 

1,040,190 
$ 41,565,019 

(761,7891 
$ 48.534,228 

$ 26,542,363 
299,221 

1,982,945 
2,332,843 
2,620,784 

317,387 
5,828,671 
4.641,388 

49,604 
64,034 

$ 33,398,043 
440,274 

2,611,798 
2,602,469 
2.881,754 

306,273 
5,208,685 
4,373,066 

51,166 
56,741 

$ 26,032,934 
339,757 

3,210,345 
2,730,362 
2,758,800 

298,978 
4,886,759 
3,987,290 

66,005 
47,095 

$ 23,432,061 
170,615 

2,626,555 
2,102,150 
2,972,304 

408,408 
4,633,880 
3,608,653 

125,184 
43,962 

$ 21,646,510 
141,386 

2,765,170 
2,898,261 
3,019,812 

579,011 
4,077,612 
3,396,556 

51,915 
42,379 

79,056 52,794 
$ 40,202,828 $ 38,671,406 

35,456 
$ 44.393,781 

27,540 
$ 44,706.780 

11,394 
$ 51,941,663 

$ 2,893,613 $ 3,827,448 $ 2,967,921 $ 921.089 $ 2,904,223 

2,087,002 

$ 806,611 
135,997 

$ 942,608 

2,009,695 

$ 894,528 
98,045 

$ 992,573 

2,230,361 

$ (1,309,272) 
136;518 

$ (1,172,754) 

2,282,544 

$ 1,544,904 
191,540 

$ 1,736,444 

2,253,658 

$ 714,263 
114,310 

$ 828,573 

$ 68,938 $ 66,415 $ 135.054 $ 250.717 $ 67,510 
(2,010) 

$ 64,405 
10,521 

$ 79,459 
17,848 

$ 85,358 
(1 9,674) 

$ 115,380 
1.777 

$ 252,494 

NET MARGINS (LOSS) $ 1,007,013 $ (1,087,396) $ 1,072,032 $ 1,081,067 $ 1,851.824 

Miscellaneous Statistics 
MWH Sales 
Xmes interest Earned Ratio 
Debt Service Coveraoe 

405,499 
1.48 
1.53 

21.89% 
23.63% 

406,123 
0.51 
0.98 

21.38% 
23.45% 

41 3,301 
1.53 
1.44 

24.96% 
27.18% 

428,803 
1.48 
1.56 

25.29% 
27.85% 

387,054 
1.81 
1.65 

I 

Equity to Total Assets Excluding Other Comprehensive Income 
Equity to Total Capitalization 

22 33% 
24 92% 
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BOLINGER, SEGARS, GILBERT & Moss, L.L.P. 
C E R T I F I E D  P U B L I C  A C C O U N T A N T E  

PHONE: ( 8 0 6 )  747-3805 

FAX: 1 8 0 6 1  747-38 1 5  

62 1 5  NABHVILLE AVENUE 

LUBBOCK, TEXAS 79423-1954 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH ASPECTS OF CONTRACTUAL 
AGREEMENTS AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS FOR ELECTRIC BORROWERS 

Board of Directors 
Navopache Electric Cooperative, Inc. 
Lakeside, Arizona 

Independent Auditor’s Report 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audit contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Navopache Electric 
Cooperative, Inc. (the Cooperative), which comprise the balance sheet as of April 30, 2014, and the 
related statements of income and patronage capital, changes in cash flows for the year then ended, and 
the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated June 24, 2014. In 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 24, 2014, 
on our consideration of the Cooperative’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other 
matters. No reports other than the reports referred to above have been furnished to management. 

In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the Cooperative 
failed to comply with the terms, covenants, provisions, or conditions of their loan, grant, and security 
instruments as set forth in 7 CFR Part 1773, Policy on Audifs of Rural Utilities Service Borrowers, 
51773.33 and clarified in the RUS policy memorandum dated February 7, 2014, insofar as they relate to 
accounting matters as enumerated below. However, our audit was not directed primarily toward obtaining 
knowledge of noncompliance. Accordingly, had we performed additional procedures, other matters may 
have come to our attention regarding the Cooperative’s noncompliance with the above-referenced terms, 
covenants, provisions, or conditions of the contractual agreements and regulatory requirements, insofar 
as they relate to accounting matters. In connection with our audit, we noted no matters regarding the 
Cooperative’s accounting and records to indicate that the Cooperative did not: 

Maintain adequate and effective accounting procedures; 

Utilize adequate and fair methods for accumulating and recording labor, material, and overhead costs, 
and the distribution of these costs to construction, retirement, and maintenance or other expense 
accounts; 

Reconcile continuing property records to the controlling general ledger plant accounts; 

Clear construction accounts and accrue depreciation on completed construction; 

Record and properly price the retirement of plant; 
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Seek approval of the sale, lease or transfer capital assets and disposition of proceeds for the sale or 
lease of plant, material, or scrap; 

Maintain adequate control over materials and supplies; 

Prepare accurate and timely Financial and Operating Reports; 

Obtain written RUS approval to enter into any contract for the management, operation, or maintenance of 
the borrower’s system if the contract covers all or substantially all of the electric system; 

Disclose material related party transactions in the financial statements. In accordance with requirements 
for related parties in generally accepted accounting principles; 

Record depreciation in accordance with RUS requirements (See RUS Bulletin 183-1, Depreciation Rates 
and Procedures); 

Comply with the requirements for the detailed schedule of deferred debits and deferred credits; and 

Comply with the requirements for the detailed schedule of investments. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors, management and the 
RUS and supplemental lenders and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than 
these specified parties. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. 

Certified Public Accountants 

Lubbock, Texas 

June 24,2014 



BOLINGER, SEGARS, GILBERT & Moss, L.L.P. 
C E R T I F I E D  P u E L I  c A C C O  u N T A N  r s 

PHONE: ( 8 0 6 )  747-3806 

FAX: ( 8 0 6 )  747-38 15 

82  1 5  NABHVILLE AVENUE 

LUBBOCK, TEXAS 79423-1954 

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENTAUDlTlNG STANDARDS 

Board of Directors 
Navopache Electric Cooperative, Inc. 
Lakeside, Arizona 

We have audited in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Navopache Electric 
Cooperative, Inc. (the Cooperative), as of and for the year ended April 30, 2014, and the related notes to 
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Cooperative’s basic financial statements, and 
have issued our report thereon dated June 24, 2014. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Navopache Electric 
Cooperative, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the 
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Cooperative’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Cooperative’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists with the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency or a combination of deficiencies in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Navopache Electric Cooperative, Inc.’s 
financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do 
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are 
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Cooperative’s 
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Certified Public Accountants 

Lubbock, Texas 

June 24,2014 
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NAVOPACHE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 

ALTERNATE RATE FILING PACKAGE 
TEST YEAR ENDING 12/3 1/2013 

OVERVIEW 

The test year for the Alternative Rate Filing Package is the 12 months ending December 3 1,2013 

and Navopache’s audit year is the twelve months ending April 30. The Rate Filing Package schedules were 

prepared using General Ledger, Form 7, and Sales Report balances for the test year. 

Navopache serves customers in both Arizona and New Mexico with rates subject to approval of 

the respective state regulatory commissions. The current Arizona rates became eEective prior to the test 

year and the current New Mexico rates became effective January 2014. Currently, the approved rates are 

the same in both states, and Navopache intends to request the same rate changes in New Mexico. In the test 

year, the Arizona customers accounted for approximately 97% of the customers, kwh sold, and revenue. 

Proposed base revenues of $49,628,993 are 4% greater than test year actual base revenues and are 

$1,646,993 or 3% greater than adjusted test year total revenues. The proposed class increases in base 

revenue are: 
Projected Revenue 

Increase Due to Rates % Increase 
Over Over Over 

Over Test Adjusted Over Test Adjusted Adjusted 
Year Base TY Base Year Base TY Base TY Total 

Customer Classification Revenue Revenue Revenue Reveuue Revenue 

Residential 
Residential-TOU 6 Month 
Residential-TOU 12 Month 

Commercial & Industrial 
Commercial & Industrial-Pri 
Commercial & Industrial-TOU 
Commercial & Industrial-TOU-Pri 

Commercial & Industrial - Total 
Small Commercial 
Small Commercial-TOU 6 Month 
Small Commercial-TOU 12 Month 
Small Commercial - Total 

Irrigation & Water Pumping 
Irrigation & Water Pumping TOU 

Lighting 
Total 

Residential - Total 

Irrigation & Water Pumping - Total 

1,180,753 
36,079 

169,%6 
1,386,798 

259,192 
2,689 

70,871 
6,533 

339284 
107,558 

6,146 
4,818 

11 8,522 
36,707 
6,520 

43227 
20,820 

1,908,652 

992,845 
31,658 

130,360 
1,154,863 

256,900 
2,754 

63,686 
17,547 

340,887 
85,048 
2,163 
1,313 

88,524 
36,639 

6,520 
43,159 
19,105 

1,646,538 

5.22% 
2.44% 
2.86% 
4.62% 
4.16% 
3.72% 
2.53% 
0.79% 
3 41% 
1.80% 
2.10% 
3.28% 
1.85% 
4.83% 
4.78% 
4.82% 
4.71% 
4.00% 

4.36% 
2.13% 
2.18% 
3.82% 
4.12% 
3.82% 
2.27% 
2.15% 
3.43% 
1.42% 
0.73% 
0.87% 
1.37% 
4.82% 
4.78% 
4.82% 
4.30% 
3.43% 

3.92% 
1.84% 
1.91% 
3.41% 
3.59% 
3.42% 
1.92% 
1.83% 
2.96% 
125% 
0.64% 
0.77% 
121% 
425% 
4.21% 
424% 
4.02% 
3.04% 

The Rate Filing Package schedules related to the Balance Sheet and Income Statement are 

presented on a total company basis. Schedules related to test year usage (consumers, kwh sold, revenue 
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by rate schedule) are presented for Total Company, Arizona, and New Mexico. The adjustments to the test 

year are: 

Base Revenue 
PPCA Revenue 
PPCA (Over) Under Recovery 
Total Revenue 

Purchased Power 
Payroll 
Benefits 
Payroll Tax 
Bad Debts 
Rate Case 
Memberships/Donations 
Depreciation 
Property Tax 
Total Operating Expenses 

Interest on Long-Term Debt 
Other Deductions 
Total Interest & Other Deductions 

$ 262,114 
1,92 1,006 
2,266,981 

$4,450,101 

$4,424,136 
1,386,43 1 

12,546 

66,667 

210,030 
30,408 

$5,949,928 

-172,875 

-1,884 

-5,530 

$ 285,966 

$ 276,416 
-9,550 

Interest Income $ -250,000 

Adjusted test year base revenues were recalculated using current rates for Arizona and New 

Mexico. Adjusted test year PPCA revenues were recalculated using a PPCA factor based on the adjusted 

test year purchased power. Adjusted base revenue is $262,114 greater than test year actual base revenue. 

Adjusted PPCA revenue is $1,921,006 greater than test year actual PPCA revenue. The adjusted PPCA 

(Over) Under Recovery is adjusted to $0 which increased revenue $2,266,981. The adjustments to test year 

revenue total $4,450,101. 

The purchased power is adjusted to reflect current wholesale generation and transmission and 

delivery rates. During the test year, Navopache reduced actual invoiced power cost by $4,209,262 to pass 

through transmission refunds related to prior periods to the customers through the PPCA factor. Navopache 

completed the refunds to its customers through the PPCA in May 2014, therefore, the transmission refund 

credits are excluded from the adjusted test year purchased power. The generation and transmission and 

delivery costs increase $214,847. The total adjustment to purchased power increases expenses $4,424,136. 

Payroll is adjusted to remove a non-recurring credit and to reflect payroll for the current number of 

employees and current wages and salaries. In 2012, Navopache began a 3-year program to convert to AMI 

meters which results in large retirements of old style meters. The accounting treatment for the retirement 

of the meters resulted in a $1,402,711 credit to Account 586 in the test year and this credit is removed for 

the adjusted test year. The expense adjustment to state payroll at current levels is a reduction of $16,280. 

The total expense adjustment to payroll is $1,386,43 1. 
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Employee benefits expense are restated to current benefit levels using annualized 2014 insurance 

premiums total and 2013 pension and 401K contribution ratios applied to adjusted payroll. The benefits 

adjustment to expenses is a reduction of $172,875. 

The adjustment to payroll taxes increases expenses $12,546. Adjusted payroll tax including 

workers' compensation is calculated using applicable tax rates applied to adjusted payroll. 

Adjusted bad debt expense is calculated by applying the 5-year historical net write-off ratio to total 

revenue to total adjusted revenue. The adjustment reduces expenses by $1,884. 

The adjustment for rate case expense is $66,667 which corresponds to a 3-year amortization of 

estimated rate case expense of $200,000. 

Test year expense of $5,530 for memberships and donations is removed from operating expenses. 

Adjusted depreciation expense for Transmission and Distribution plant is determined by applying 

the applicable depreciation rates to the test year end plant account balances. Adjusted depreciation expense 

for General plant is determined by annualizing the January 2014 depreciation expense. The total adjustment 

to depreciation expense is $210,030. 

Property tax expense is adjusted by calculating the 2013 effective property tax rate and applying 

that ratio to test year end plant in service. The adjustment increases property tax expense $30,408. 

Interest expense on long-term debt is calculated by applying the applicable interest rates to principal 

outstanding at test year end plus the interest on $5 million of additional debt. The adjustment increases 

interest on long-term debt $285,966. 

Test year expense of $9,550 for memberships and donations charged to Other Deductions is 

removed. 

Interest income in Non-Operating Margins is reduced $250,000. The adjusted interest income of 

$68,924 is consistent with monthly interest income for the last few months of the test year. 

Based on the adjusted test year expenses, the proposed revenues produce a return of $4,465,647 

which is a5.11Yorate ofreturnon arate base of$87,400,193. Theproposedoperatingmarginof$1,886,594 

produces an operating TIER of 1.75. 

I 
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NAVOPACHE ELECTRIC COOPERATTVE, INC. 

ALTERNATE RATE FILING PACKAGE 

A. 

B. 

C. 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Summary Schedules 
A- 1 .O 
A-2.0 Income Statement 
A-4.0 
A-5.0 Changes in Financial Position 

Computation of Increase in Gross Revenue Requirements 

Construction Expenditures and Gross Utility Plant in Service 

Rate Base Schedules 
B-2.0 
B-5.0 
B-5.1 

Original Cost Rate Base Pro Forma Adjustments 
Computation of Working Capital Page 1 - Cash Working Capital 
Computation of Working Capital Page 2 - Average Matefials & Supplies, 
Prepayments, Consumer Deposits, Consumer Energy Prepayments, and Consumer 
Construction Advances 

B-5.2 Accumulated Depreciation 

Test Year h o m e  Statements 
c-1 .o 
c-2.0 
c-2.1 
c-2.2 
C-2.3 
C-2.4 
C-2.5 
C-2.6 
C-2.6.1 
C-2.7 
C-2.8 
C-2.8.1 
C-2.9 
C-2.9.1 
c-2.10.0 
c-2.10.1 
c-2.10.2 
C-2.10.3 
C-2.10.4 
C-2.10 -5 
c-2.11 
c-2.12 
C-2.13 
(2-2.14 
C-2.14.1 
C-2.14.2 
C-2.14.3 
C-2.14.4 
C-2.15 
C-2.16 
C-2.17 

Adjusted Test Year Income Statement 
Summary of Income Statement Pro Forma Adjustments 
Pro Forma Adjustments to Operating Expenses 
Payroll Expensed - Adjustment 
Employee Benefits Expensed - Adjustment 
Payroll Taxes Expensed -Adjustment 
Property Taxes Expensed - Adjustment 
Revenue Adjustment 
Other Revenue 
Purchased Power Adjustment 
Bad Debt Expense Adjustment 
Summary of Revenue and Bad Debt Write-offs 
Payroll Adjustment 
Historical Payroll 
Employee Benefits Adjustment 
NRECA Employee Benefits Excluding Retirement and New Hires 
NRECA Employee Benefits Excluding Retirement - Open Positions 
HSA Contributions 
Defined Benefit Pension Plan 
401K Plan 
Rate Case Expense Adjustment 
Depreciation Expense Adjustment 
Property Tax Adjustment 
Payroll Taxes Adjustment 
FICA Taxes 
Federal Unemployment Taxes 
State Unemployment Taxes 
Workers’ Compensation 
Donations - Other Deductions Adjustment 
Interest Expense Adjustment 
Interest Income Adjustment 
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Page 1 

STANDARD 
RATE 

Customer Charge 
($/CustomerRclo.) 
Energy Charge 

1 - 400 kwh 
Over 400 kWh 

($kwh) 

NAVOPACHE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 
Lakeside, Arizona 

Distribution Charges 

Power Meter 
Supply Metering Reading Billig Access Total 

$1.96 $3.05 $8.65 $8.5 1 $22.17 

$0.05400 $0.02458 $0.02458 
$0.03407 $0.03407 $0.08500 

STANDARD OFFER TARWF 

SCHEDULE NO. 1 
RESIDENTIAL, SCHOOLS, CHURCHES, AND COiVMUMTY EIALLS 

Effective: For electrical usage beginning on or about 
the cycle billings. 

and billed beginning with 

Availability 
Available to residential and farm consumers, and to schools, churches, and community halls 

requiring single-phase service throughout the Cooperative’s certificated area, where the facilities of the 
Cooperative are of adequate capacity and are adjacent to premises. This service is subject to the 
Cooperative’s rules and regulations. 

AppIicability 
To all single-phase residential, school, church, and community hall electric service in individual 

locations and individually metered apartments and for non-seasonal farm use when all service is supplied 
at one point of delivery and energy is metered through one meter. 

Not applicable for resale, breakdown, standby or auxiliary service. 

Type of Service 
Single-phase, 60 cycles, nominal 120/240 volts, 120/208 volts, 3 wire, and limited to individual 

motors of 10 HP or less that will not cause excessive voltage fluctuations, supplied through one set of 
service wires and metered through one meter. 

Monthlv Rate 

Total Rate 

$22.17 

$0.07858 
$0.11907 



NAVOPACFE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 
Lakeside, Arizona 

TIMEOF-USE 
RATE 

Customer Charge 
($/Customer/Mo.) 
Energy Charge 

On-Peak kWh 
Off-peak kwh 

($kwh) 

STANDARD OFFERTAlUFF 

Distribution Charges 

 POW^ Meter 
Supply Metering Reading Billing Access Total TotalRate 

$4.57 $5.77 $8.20 $10.13 $28.67 $28.67 

$0.1 3480 $0.00959 $0.00959 $0.14439 
$0.02900 $0.02684 $0.02684 $0.05584 

SCHEDULE NO. 1 
RESIDENTIAL, SCHOOLS, CEtURCFES, AND COMMUNITY ELILLS 

B. OPTIONAL TIME-OF-USE  TOUT^) RATE: 

The Optional TOU Rate is voluntary and, subject to meter availability and installation, shall be 
applicable with the first complete cycle after receipt of a customer’s written request. The rate is available 
during the months of October through March or year-round at the customer’s option. If the customer 
requests to be taken off the Optional TOU Rate, the Standard Rate will be applied to the next complete 
billing cycle after receipt of the request. 

Definition of On-PeaMOff-Peak Hours 

7:OO p.m- to 1O:OO p.m., Monday through Saturday. All other hours are considered to be Off-peak. 
April through September: For this rate schedule, On-Peak hours are 9:00 a.m. to 5:OO p.m. and 

October through March For this rate schedule, On-Peak hours are 1O:OO a.m. to 3:OO p.m. and 
6:OO p.m. to 11:OO p.m., Monday through Saturday. All other hours are considered to be Off-peak. 

Minimum Charpe 
The minimum monthly charge shall be the Customer Charge. The minimum does not include 

power cost adjustment. Where it is necessary to extend or reinforce existing distribution facilities, the 
minimum monthly charge may be increased to assure adequate corhpensation for the added facilities. 
Where the minimum charge is increased in accordance with the terms of this section, additional energy 

. 

shall be included in accordance with the foregoing schedule. . .  

Tax Adiustment 
The Cooperative is authorized to collect and pass on, by adding to the bill to the consumer, the 

applicable proportionate part of any taxes or government impositions which are or may in the future be 
assessed on the basis of the gross revenues of the Cooperative andor the price or revenue from the 
electric energy or service sold andor the volume of energy purchased for sale andor sold hereunder. 

Purchased Power Cost Adjustment 
The Cooperative shall, if purchased power cost is increased or decreased above or below the base 

purchased power cost of $0.066 160 per kwh sold, flow through such increases or decreases to all classes 
of consumers. 



NAVOPACHE ELECTHC COOPERATWE, INC. 
Lakeside, Arizona 

STANDARD OFFER TARIFF 

SCHEDULE NO. 1 
RESIDENTIAL, SCHOOLS, CEICTRCHES, ANI) COMMUNITY HALLS 

Meter Readinps 
All meter readings and billings shall be based on actual meter readings, except due to meter 

failure or the inability to obtain an actual reading (e.g., inclement weather) when a reasonable estimate of 
the amount of energy andor billing demand shall be made by the Cooperative. Meter readings and 
billings will be made as closely as practical on the same day each month on a cycle basis. 

Terms of Pavment 
Billings made underAiis schedule will be due and payable upon receipt and past due fifteen (15) 

days from the date the bill is mailed. Service will be subject to disconnect in accordance with the 
Cooperative’s collection policy. 

Demand Side MaoaEernent Propram @Sm Adder 
The Cooperative shall add to its bill a DSM adder in the amount set forth in its separate DSM cost 

recovery tariff approved by the Arizona Corporation Commission in connection with the Electric Energy 
Efficiency Implementation Plan and Demand Side Management Program filed by the Cooperative. Until 
the Arizona Corporation Commission approves the Cooperative’s DSM cost recovery tariff, the 
Cooperative shall continue to add to its bill the per k W h  demand side management program adder in the 
amount recomputed annually based upon reports submitted to the Commission by the Cooperative to help 
offset the costs associated with the Cooperative’s programs designed to promote load management and 
approved by Staff of the Arizona Corporation Commission. 

Renewable Enerpy Standard and Tariff (REST) Adder 
The Cooperative shall add to its bill a REST adder in the amount set forth in its separate 

Renewable Energy Standard tariff approved by the Arizona Corporation Commission in connection with 
the Renewable Energy Standard and Tariffhplementation Plan filed by the Cooperative. 

Other Charges 
Other charges may be applicable subject to approval by the Arizona Corporation Commission. 



NAVOPACEEE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, XNC. 
Lakeside, Arizona 

STANDARD OFFER T W F  

SCHEDULE NO. 2 
COMMERCIAL AM) Ih’DUSTRIAL SERVICE - ABOVE 50 KVA 

Effective: For electrical usage beginning on or about 
the cycle billings. 

and billed beginning with 

Availability 
Available to consumers, single- or three-phase, throughout the Cooperative’s certificated area that 

require more than 50 kVA of transformer capacity where the facilities of the Cooperative are of adequate 
capacity and are adjacent to premises. This service is subje$ to the Cooperative’s rules and regulations. 

Type of Service 

available secondary or primary voltages. 
Single- or three-phase, over 50 kVA transformer capacity, alternating current, 60 cycles, 

MonthIy Rate 

A. STANDARDRATE: 

Distribution Charges 

Power Meter 
Supply Metering Reading Billing Access Total TotalRate RAW 

Customer Charge 
($/Customer/Mo.) 

Secondary $ 19.01 $3.29 $1 1.80 $89.90 $124.00 $124.00 
PrimalY $148.10 $3.29 $1 1.80 $88.81 $252.00 $252.00 

Billing Demand 
Charge ($kW of 

Energy Charge 

First 300 kWh/kW $0.07500 $0.00640 $0.00640 $0.08140 
Over 300 k W W  $0.02600 $0.00446 $0.00446 $0:03046 

Billing Demand) $2.50 $7.65 $7.65 $10.15 

($flcwh) 

at 



NAVOPACRE ELECTRIC COOPERATM, INC- 
Lakeside, Arizona 

0% 

B. 

STANDARD OFFER TARIFF 

SCHEDULE NO. 2 
COMMERCIAL AM) JNDUSTRIAL SERVICE - ABOVE 50 KVA 

OPTIONAL TIME-OF-USE (“TOW) RATE: 

Distribution Charges 

Metering RATE 

Customer Charge 
($/Customer/Mo.) 
Secondary $ 59.85 

$152.83 
Billing Demand 
Charge (SkW of 

Meter 
Reading 

$5.40 
$5.40 

Billing Access -t 
Charge ($kW On- 

Total TotalRate 
4 

$14.50 

DemandTOU metering must be installed to record kW demand and k w h  usage during the hours 
specified below. Customers may change to or fiom the TOU Rate only once during a twelve (12) month 
period. 

Definition of On-PeaWOff-Peak Hours 

shall be all other times. 
For this rate schedule, On-Peak hours shall be 8:OO a.m. to 9:OO p.m. every day. Off-peak hours 

Determination of Biliinp Demand 
The Billing Demand shall be the maximum kilowatt demand established by the consumer for any 

fifteen (15) consecutive minutes during the month. Billing Demand shall be adjusted for power factor as 
provided below. 

Determination of On-Peak Demand 
The On-Peak Demand shall be the maximum kilowatt demand established by the consumer for 

any fifteen (15) consecutive minutes during the &-Peak hours of 8:OO am. to 9:00 p.m. The On-Peak 
Demand shall be adjusted for power factor as provided below. 

Power Factor Adiustment 
The consumer agrees to maintain unity power factor as nearly as practical. The Cooperative may 

install power factor metering devices at its discretion. Demand charges will be adjusted for consumers 
with 50 kW or more of measured demand to correct for power factors during any period of fifeen 
consecutive minutes is lower than 90%, and may be so adjusted for other consumers if and when the 
Seller deems necessary. Such adjustments will be made by increasing the measured demand 1% for each 1% 
by which the power factor during any period of fifteen consecutive minutes is less than 90% lagging. 
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NAVOPACHE ELECTRIC COOPEMTTYE, JNC. 

Lakeside, Arizona 

STANDARD OFFER TARDFF 

SCHEDULE NO. 2 
CONLNDERCLAL AND INDUSTRIAL SERVICE - ABOVE 50 KS’A 

Minimum Monthly Charge 

consumer in question: 
The minimum monthly charge shall be the higher of the following charges as determined for the 

(1) 
(2) 

The minimuin monthly charge specified in the contract for service; or 
A charge of $1.75 per kVA of installed transformer capacity. 

Note: Minimum does not include power cost adjustment. 

Delivery of Primary Service 
When a customer taking service at voltage of 14,400 and above and in excess of 750 kVA, 

furnishes his own transformer and substation equipment, and receives delivery of electricity at primary 
voltage metering, a discount of 3% shall be allowed on monthly bills for primary metering. The 3% 
discount will not be allowed on the purchased power cost adjustment that is shown separately on this bill. 

The Cooperative shall have the right to approve of transformers and substation equipment 
furnished by the consumer under this type of service. 

Tax Adiustment 
The Cooperative is authorized to collect and pass on, by adding to the bill to the consumer, the 

applicable proportionate part of any taxes or government impositions which are or may in the future be 
assessed on the basis of the gross revenues of the Cooperative andor the price or revenue from the 
electric energy or service sold andor the volume of energy purchased for sale and/or sold hereunder. 

Purchased Power Cost Adiustment 
The Cooperative shall, if purchased power cost is increased or decreased above or below the base 

purchased power cost of $0.066160 per kWb sold, flow through such increases or decreases to all classes 
of consumers. 

Meter Readings 
All meter readings and billings shall be based on actual meter readings, except due. to meter 

failure or the inability to obtain an actual reading (e.g., inclement weather) when a reasonable estimate of 
the amount of energy and/or billing demand shall be made by the Cooperative. Meter readings and 
billings will be made as closely as practical on the same day each month on a cycle basis. 

Terms of Payment 
Billings made under this schedule will be due and payable upon receipt and past due fifteen (1 5) 

days from the date the bill is mailed. Service will be subject to disconnect in accordance with the 
Cooperative’s collection policy. 

Demand Side Manacement Program (DSM) Adder 
The Cooperative shall add to its bill a DSM adder in the amount set forth in its separate DSM cost 

recovery tariff approved by the Arizona Corporation Commission in connection with the Electric Energy 
Efficiency Implementation Plan and Demand Side Management Program filed by the Cooperative. Until 
the Arizona Corporation Commission approves the Cooperative’s DSM cost recovery tariff, the 
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NAVOPACE.IE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 

Lakeside, Arizona 

STANDARD OFFER TAEUI?F 

SCHEDULE NO. 2 
COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL SERVICE - ABOVE 50 KVA 

Cooperative shall continue to add to its bill the per kWh demand side management program adder in the 
amount recomputed annually based upon reports submitted to the Commission by the Cooperative to help 
offset the costs associated with the Cooperative’s programs designed to promote load management and 
approved by Staff of the Arizona Corporation Commission. 

Renewable Enern Standard and Tariff (REST) Adder 
The Cooperative shall add to its bill a REST adder in the amount set forth in its separate 

Renewable Energy Standard tariff approved by the Arizona Corporation Commission in connection with 
the Renewable Energy Standard and Tariff Implementation Plan filed by the Cooperative. 

Other Charms 
Other charges may be applicable subject to approval by the Arizona Corporation Commission. 
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STANDARD 
RATE. 

Customer Charge 
($/Customer/Mo.) 
Energy Charge 
f$kwh) 

NAVOPACHE ELECTRIC COOPERATWE, INC. 
Lakeside, Arizona 

Distribution Charges 

Power Meter 
Supply Metering Reading Billing Access Total 

$3.13 $2.85 $8.29 $12.96 $27.23 

$0.06380 $0.03446 $0.03446 

STANDARD OFFER TARIFF 

SCHEDULE NO. 3 
SMALL COMMERCIAL 

Effective: For electrical usage beginning on or about 
the cycle billings. 

and billed beginning with 

Availability 
Available to consumers throughout the Cooperative’s certificated area that require 50 kVA or less 

of transformer capacity and located along the existing electric distribution system of the Cooperative for 
single- andlor three-phase service for commercial lighting, small power, and other .commercial or 
business uses. This service is subject to the Cooperative’s rules and regulations. 

Applicability 
This schedule is applicable to all commercial use which includes service used by retail or 

wholesale businesses, small manufacturing or processing establishments, tourist or trailer camps, motels, 
stores, restaurants, service stations, professional offices, and three-phase service to residential, public 
buildings, churches, and apartments where more than one unit is served from an individual meter and all 
other uses not ordinarily considered as normal residential or home use. Except in cases of master metered 
mobile home parks, service under this schedule shall not be resold or shared with others. 

Type of Service 

in excess of 10 horsepower must be three-phase. 
Single- or three-phase, 60 cycles, at available secondary voltages. Motors having a rated capacity 

Monthly Rate 

A. STANDARD’RATE: 

Total Rate 

$0.09826 
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TIME-OF-USE 
RATE 

Customer Charge 
($/Customer/Mo.) 
Energy Charge 

(Billed Nov-Apr) 
On-Peak kwh 
Off-peak kWh 
Energy Charge 

(Billed May-Oct) 

($krn) 

($kW 

OR, 

B. 

I 

Distribution Charges 

Power Meter 
Supply Metering Reading Billing Access Total TotalRate 

$9.28 $5.57 $8.10 $13.83 $36.78 $36.78 

$0.12380 $0.03130 $0.03130 $0.15510 
$O.O28SO $0.03674 $0.03674 $0.06554 

$0.06380 $0.03446 $0.03446 $0.09826 

NAVOPACE-IE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 
Lakeside, Arizona 

STANDARD OFFER TAFUFF 

SCEiEDULE NO. 3 
SMALL COMMERCIAL 

OPTIONAL TIME-OF-USE RATE: 

The Optional TOU Rate i s  voluntary and, subject to meter availability and installation, shall be 
applicable with the first complete cycle after receipt of a customer’s written request. The rate is available 
during the months of October through March or year-round at the customer’s option. If the customer 
requests to be taken off the Optional TOU Rate, the Standard Rate will be applied to the next complete 
billing cycle after receipt of the request. 

Definition of On-PeaWOff-Peak Hours 

7:OO p.m. to 1O:OO p.m., Monday through Saturday. All other hours are considered to be Off-peak. 
April throuh September: For this rate schedule, On-Peak hours are 9:OO am. to 5:OO p.m. and 

October through March: For this rate schedule, On-Peak hours are 1O:OO a.m. to 3:OO pm. and 
6:OO p.m. to 1 1 :00 p.m., Monday through Saturday. All other hours are considered to be Off-peak. 

Minimum Monthlv Charrre 
The minimum monthly charge under the above rate shall be the customer charge, where 10 kVA 

or less of transformer capacity is required. For consumers requiring more than 10 kVA of transformer 
capacity, the minimum monthly charge shall be increased by $1.75 per each additional kVA or fraction 
thereof required. Where it is necessary to extend or reinforce existing distribution facilities, the minimum 
monthly charge may be increased in accordance with the terms of this section, additional energy shall be 
included in accordance with the foregoing rate schedule. 

Tax Adiustment 
The Cooperative is authorized to collect and pass on, by adding to the bill to the consumer, the 

applicable proportionate part of any taxes or government impositions which are or may in the future be 
assessed on the basis of the gross revenues of the Cooperative and/or the price or revenue fiom the 
electric energy or service sold andor the volume of energy purchased for sale andor sold hereunder. 
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NAVOPACEIE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 

Lakeside, Arizona 

STANDARD OFFER TARlFF 

SCEEEDULE NO. 3 
SMALL COMMERCIAL 

Purchased Power Cost Adiustment 
The Cooperative shall if purchased power cost is increased or decreased above or below the base 

purchased power cost of $0.066160 per kWh sold, flow through such increases or decreases to all classes 
of consumers. 

Meter Readings 
All meter readings and billings shall be based on actual meter readings, except due to meter 

failure or the inability to ob& an actual reading (e.g., inclement weather) when a reasonable estimate of 
the amount of energy andor billing demand shall be made by the Cooperative. Meter readings and 
billings will be made as closely as practical on the same day each month on a cycle basis. 

Terms of Payment 
Billings made under this schedule will be due and payable upon receipt and past due fifteen (1 5 )  

days from the date the bill is mailed. Service will be subject to disconnect in accordance with the 
Cooperative’s collection policy. 

Demand Side ManaPement Proeram (DSM) Adder 
The Cooperative shall add to its bill a DSM adder in the amount set forth in its separate DSM cost 

recovery tariff approved by the Arizona Corporation Commission in connection with the Electric Energy 
Efficiency Implementation Plan and Demand Side Management Program filed by the Cooperative. Until 
the Arizona Corporation Commission approves the Cooperative’s DSM cost recovery tariff, the 
Cooperative shall continue to add to its bill the per kWh demand side management program adder in the 
amount recomputed annually based upon reports submitted to the Commission by the Cooperative to help 
offset the costs associated with the Cooperative’s programs designed to promote load management and 
approved by Staff of the Arizona Corporation Commission. 

, 

Renewable Energy Standard and Tariff CREST) Adder 
The Cooperative shall add to its bill a REST adder in the amount set forth in its separate 

Renewable Energy Standard tarif€ approved by the Arizona Corporation Commission in connection with 
the Renewable Energy Standard and Tariff Implementation Plan filed by the Cooperative. 

Other Charees 
Other charges may be applicable subject to approval by the Arizona Corporation Commission. 
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STANDARDRATE 

Customer Charge 
($/Customer/Mo.) 
Demand Charge 
($kW/Month) 
Energy Charge 
($kwh) 

NAVOPACHE ELECTRIC COOPERATITB, INC. 
Lakeside, Arizona 

Distribution Charges 

Power Meter 
Supply Metering Reading Billing Access Total TotalRate 

$5.67 $2.77 $8.06 $23.73 $40.23 $40.23 

$5.00 $0.24 $0.24 $5.24 

$0.04980 $0.04450 $0.04450 $0.09430 

SCHEDULE NO. 4 
IRRIGATION AND WATER PUMPING SERVICE 

Effective: For electrical usage beginning on or about 
the cycle billings. 

and billed beginning with 

Availability 
Available to consumers for service to irrigation pumps and any other water pumping loads within 

the Cooperative’s certificated area requiring less than 300 kVA of transformer capacity, where the 
facilities of the Cooperative are of adequate capacity and are adjacent to the customer’s premises. This 
rate is not available to loads served by primary metering. This service is subject to the Cooperative’s rules 
and regulations. 

Type of Service 

phase service may be furnished, provided the motor capacity is not in excess of ten horsepower (10 Hp). 
Single- or three-phase, 60 cycle alternating current. At the discretion of the Cooperative, single- 

Monthly Rate 

A. STANDARD RATE: 
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Power 
Supply 

NAVOPACFB ELECTRTC COOPERATIVE, INC. 
Lakeside, Arizona 

Distribution Charges 

Meter 
Metering Reading Billing Access Total TotalRate 

B. 

$1.86 I $5.50 I $8.00 

SOAEDULE NO. 4 
IRRIGATION AM) WATER PUMPING SERVICE 

$23.87 $45.23 $45.23 

OPTIONAL TIME-OF-USE (“TOW) RATE: 

$2.40 

TIME-OF-USE 
RATE 

$3.10 $32 0 $5.50 

Customer Charge 

$8.80 

$0.02230 

($/CustomeriMo.) 
Billing Demand 

$0.63 $0.63 $9.43 

$0.01984 $0.01984 $0.04214 

Char; ($kW of 
Billing Demand) 
On-Peak Demand 
Charge ($kW On- 
Peak Demand 
Energy Charge 
($kwh) 

Demand/TOU Metering must be installed to record kW demand and kWh usage during the hours 
specified below. 

Definition of On-PeaWOff-Peak Hours 

shall be all other times. 
For this rate schedule, &-Peak hours shall be 8:OO a.m. to 9:00 p.m. every day. Off-peak hours 

Minimum Monthly Charpre 

consumer in question: 
The minimum monthly charge shall be the higher of the following charges as determined for the 

(1) 
(2) 

The minimum monthly charge specified in the contract for service, or 
A charge of $1.75 per kVA of installed transformer capacity. 

Determination of Billing; Demand 
The Billing Demand shall be the maximum kilowatt demand established by the consumer for any 

fifteen (15) consecutive minutes during the month. Billing Demand shall be adjusted for power factor as 
provided below. 

Determination of On-Peak Demand 
The Billing Demand shall be the maximum kilowatt demand established by the consumer for any 

fifteen (15) consecutive minutes during the On-Peak hours of 8:OO am. to 9:00 p.m- The On-Peak 
Demand shall be adjusted for power factor as provided below. 
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NAVOPACFB ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 
Lakeside, Arizona 

SCHEDULE NO. 4 
IRRIGATION AND WATER PUMPING SERVICE 

Power Factor Adiustment 
The consumer agrees to maintain unity power factor as nearIy as practical. The Cooperative may 

install power factor metering devices at its discretion. Demand charges will be adjusted for consumers 
with 50 kW or more of measured demand to correct for power factors during any period of fifteen 
consecutive minutes is lower than 90%, and may be so adjusted for other consumers if and when the 
Seller deems necessary. Such adjustments will be made by increasing the measured demand 1% for each 1 % 
by which the power factor during any period of fifteen consecutive minutes is less than 90% lagging. 

Tax Adjustment 
The Cooperative is authorized to collect and pass on, by adding to the bill to the consumer, the 

applicable proportionate part of any taxes or government impositions which are or may in the future be 
assessed on the basis of the gross revenues of the Cooperative andor the price or revenue from the 
electric energy or service sold and/or the volume of energy purchased for sale and/or sold hereunder. 

Purchased Power Cost Adiustment 
The Cooperative shall, if purchased power cost is increased or decreased above or below the base 

purchased power cost of $0.066160 per kWh sold, flow through such increases or decreases to all classes 
of consumers. 

Meter Readings 
All meter readings and billings shall be based on actual meter readings, except due to meter 

failure or the inability to obtain an actual reading (e.g., inclement weather) when a reasonable estimate of 
the amount of energy and/or billing demand shall be made by the Cooperative. Meter readings and 
billings will be made as closely as practical on the same day each month on a cycle basis. 

Terms of Payment 
Billings made under this schedule will be due and payable upon receipt and past due fifteen (1 5 )  

days from the date the bill is mailed. Service will be subject to disconnect in accordance with the 
Cooperative’s collection policy. 

Demand Side Management Program CDSM) Adder 
The Cooperative shall add to its bill a DSM adder in the amount set forth in its separate DSM cost 

recovery tariff approved by the Arizona Corporation Commission in connection with the Electric Energy 
Efficiency Implementation Plan and Demand Side Management Program filed by the Cooperative. Until 
the Arizona Corporation Commission approves the Cooperative’s DSM cost recovery tariff, the 
Cooperative shall continue to add to its bill the per kWh demand side management program adder in the 
amount recomputed annually based upon reports submitted to the Coinmission by the Cooperative to help 
offset the costs associated with the Cooperative’s programs designed to promote load management and 
approved by Staff of the Arizona Corporation Commission. 
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NAVOPACHE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, KNC. 
Lakeside, Arizona 

SCHEDULE NO. 4 
IEtRIGATION AND WATER PUMPING SERVICE 

Renewable Enerey Standard and Tariff (REST) Adder 
The Cooperative shall add to its bill a REST adder in the amount set forth in its separate 

Renewable Energy Standard tariff approved by the Arizona Corporation Commission in connection with 
the Renewable Energy Standard and Tariff Implementation Plan filed by the Cooperative. 

Other Charges 
Other charges may be applicable subject to approval by the Arizona Corporation Commission. 
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NAVOPACKE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 
Lakeside, Arizona 

STANDARD OFFER TARIFF 

SCsEDULE NO. 5 
SECURITY LIGHTS 

Effective: For electrical usage beginning on or about 
the cycle billings. 

and billed beginning with 

Availabilitv 
Available to consumers in the Cooperative’s certificated area for security lighting uses, where the - -  - 

facilities of the Cooperative are of adequate capacity and are adjacent to the customer’s premises. This 
service is subject to the Cooperative’s rules and regulations. 

Type of Service 
Single-phase, 120/240 volts, 60 cycle alternating current. 

Application 
The Cooperative will construct, maintain, and operate all security lights, except in existing 

instances where the consumer owns the light, in which case the consumer shall be responsible for 
operation and maintenance of same. 

Lamps will be controlled by timing devices or photoelectric units to provide service fiom dusk to 
dawn. 

Monthly Rate 

The monthly rate shall be as follows, based on estimated average monthly usage for m e t e r e d  
lights: 

A. CONSUMER OWNED SECURITY LIGHTS: 

Distribution 
Power 

Consumer Owned Supply Billing Access Total Total Rate 

175WattMVL75kWh $4.35 $0.24 $4.50 $4.74 $9.09 

250 WattMvL 110 kWh $6.38 $0.36 $5.03 $5.39 $11.77 

I 4OOWattMvL175kWh I $10.15 I $0.57 I $8.56 I $9.13 1 $19.2 I 
I 100WattHPS34kWh I $1.97 I $0.11 I $3.81 I $3.92 I $5.89 I 
I 150WattHPS50kWh I $2.90 I $0.16 I $5.27 I $5.43 I $8.33 I 
I 250 WattKF’S 85 kWh I $4.93 I $0.27 I $5.76 I $6.03 I $10.96 I 

I I $4.17 1 $4.17 I $4.17 I 1 Pole Charge (if applicable) I 
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Distribution 

Cooperative Owned Billing I Access I Total 

NAVOPACHE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 
Lakeside, Arizona 

Total Rate 

STANDARD OFFER TARIFF 

175 Watt MVL 75 kWh 

250 Watt h4VL 110 kwh 

400 Watt MVL 175 kwh 

SCHEDULE NO. 5 
SECURITY LIGHTS 

$4.35 $0.24 $6.39 $6.63 $10.98 

$6.38 $0.36 $7.59 $7.95 $14.33 

$10.15 $0.56 $12.47 $13.03 $23.18 

O R  

100 Watt HPS 34 kWh 

150 Watt HPS 50 kWh 

B. COOPERATIVE OWNED SECURITY LIGHTS: 

$1.97 $0.1 1 $7.05 $7.16 $9.13 

$2.90 $0.16 $8.5 1 $8.67 $11.57 

250 Watt HE’S 85 kwh 

Pole Charge (if applicable) 

$4.93 $0.27 $8.99 $9.26 $14.19 

$4.17 $4.17 $4.17 

Tax Adiustment 
The Cooperative is authorized to collect and pass on, by adding to the bill to the consumer, the 

applicable proportionate part of any taxes or government impositions which are or may in the future be 
assessed on the basis of the gross revenues of the Cooperative andor the price or revenue from the 
electric energy or service sold andor the volume of energy purchased for sale and/or sold hereunder. 

Purchased Power Cost Adjustment 
The Cooperative shall, if purchased power cost is increased or decreased above or below the base 

purchased power cost of $0.066160 per kWh sold, flow through such increases or decreases to all classes 
of consumers. 

Terms of Payment 
Billings made under this schedule will be due and payable upon receipt and past due ffieen (1 5 )  

days from the date the bill is mailed. Service will be subject to discomect in accordance with the 
Cooperative’s collection policy. 
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NAVOPACHE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 
Lakeside, Arizona 

STANDARD OFFER TARIFF 

SCHEDULE NO. 5 
SECURITY LIGHTS 

Demand Side Management Program CDSM) Adder 
The Cooperative shall add to its bill a DSM adder in the amount set forth in its separate DSM cost 

recovery tariff approved by the Arizona Corporation Commission in connection with the Electric Energy 
Efficiency Implementation Plan and Demand Side Management Program filed by the Cooperative. Until 
the Arizona Corporation Commission approves the Cooperative’s DSM cost recovery tariff, the 
Cooperative shall continue to add to its bill the per kwh demand side management program adder in the 
amount recomputed annually based upon reports submitted to the Commission by the Cooperative to help 
offset the costs associated with Lk Cooperative’s programs designed to promote load management and 
approved by Staff of the Arizona Corporation Commission. 

Renewable Enerp;y Standard and Tariff (REST) Adder 
The Cooperative shall add to its bill a REST adder in the amount set forth in its separate 

Renewable Energy Standard tariff approved by the Arizona Corporation Commission in connection with 
the Renewable Energy Standard and Tariff Implementation Plan filed by the Cooperative. 

Other Charges 
Other charges may be applicable subject to approval by the Arizona Corporation Commission. 
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Street Lighting Service 

175 Watt MVL 75 kWh 

NAVOPACEE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 
Lakeside, Arizona 

Distribution 
Power 
Supply Billing Access Total Total Rate 

$4.35 $0.24 $6.39 $6.63 $10.98 

STANDARD OFFER TARIFF 

250 Watt MVL 1 IO Kwh 

400 Watt lvlVL. 175 kwh 

SCHEDULE NO. 6 
STREET LIGHTING SERVICE 

$6.38 $0.36 $6.55 $6.91 $13.29 

$10.15 $0.56 $12.47 $13.03 $23.18 

Effective: For electrical usage beginning on or about 
the cycle billings. 

and billed beginning with 

100 Watt HPS 34 kWh 

150 Watt HPS 50 kWh 

250 Watt HPS 85 kWh 

e 
Available to municipal corporations and other organizations within the Cooperative’s certificated 

area qualifying for street lighting service, where the facilities of the Cooperative are of adequate capacity 
and are adjacent to the customer’s premises. This service is subject to the Cooperative’s rules and 
regulations. / 

$1.97 $0.11 $3.81 $3.92 $5.89 

$2.90 $0.16 $5.27 $5.43 $8.33 

$4.93 $0.27 $5.76 $6.03 $10.96 

Type of Service 
Single-phase, 120/240 volts, 60 cycle alternating current. 

Application 
The consumer shall construct, maintain and operate the system. 

Lamps to be controlled by timing devices or photoelectric units to provide for service from dusk 
until dawn. 

Monthly Rate 
The monthly rate shall be as follows, based on estimated average monthly usage for m e t e r e d  

lights: 

1000 WattLamp435 kWh 1 $25.23 I $1.44 I $15.23 I $16.67 I $41.90 



NAVOPACHE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 
Lakeside, Arizona 

STANDARD OFFER TARIFF 

SCHEDULE NO. 6 
STREET LIGHTING SERVICE 

Tax Adiustment 
The Cooperative is authorized to collect and pass on, by adding to the bill to the consumer, the 

applicable proportionate part of any taxes or govemment impositions which are or may in the hture be 
assessed on the basis of the gross revenues of the Cooperative and/or the price or revenue from the 
electric energy or service sold and/or the volume of energy purchased for sale and/or sold hereunder. 

Purchased Power Cost Adiustment 
The Cooperative shall, if purchased power cost is increased or decreased above or belcw the base 

purchased power cost of $0.066160 per kwh sold, flow through such increases or decreases to all classes 
of consumers. 

Terms of Payment 
Billings made under this schedule will be due and payable upon receipt and past due fifteen (15) 

days from the date the bill is mailed. Service will be subject to disconnect in accordance with the 
Cooperative’s collection policy. 

Demand Side Manapement Program (DSW Adder 
The Cooperative shall add to its bill a DSM adder in the amount set forth in its separate DSM cost 

recovery tariff approved by the Arizona Corporation Commission in connection with the Electric Energy 
Efficiency Implementation Plan and Demand Side Management Program filed by the Cooperative. Until 
the Arizona Corporation Commission approves the Cooperative’s DSM cost recovery tariff, the 
Cooperative shall continue to add to its bill the per kwh demand side management program adder in the 
amount recomputed annually based upon reports submitted to the Commission by the Cooperative to help 
offset the costs associated with the Cooperative’s programs designed to promote load management and 
approved by Staff of the Arizona Corporation Commission. 

Renewable Energy Standard and Tariff (REST)  Adder 
The Cooperative shall add to its bill a REST adder in the amount set forth in its separate 

Renewable Energy Standard tariff approved by the Arizona Corporation Commission in connection with 
the Renewable Energy Standard and Tarif€ Implementation Plan filed by the Cooperative. 

Other Charges 
Other charges may be applicable subject to approval by the Arizona Corporation Commission. 
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NAVOPACHE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 

Lakeside, Arizona 

STANDARD OFFER TARIFF 

SCHXDULE NO. 7 
OPTIONAL ELECTRIC SERVICE FOR QUALIFIED COGENERATION 
AND SMALL POWER PRODUCTION FACILITIES OVER 100 KW 

Effective: For electrical usage beginning on or about 
the cycle billings. 

and billed beginning with 

Availability 
Available to consumers within the Cooperative’s certificated area, where facilities of adequate 

capacity and suitable voltages are adjacent to the premises served and when all applicable provisions 
described herein have been met. This service is subject to the Cooperative’s rules and regulations. 

Application 
Applicable only to qualified cogeneration and small power production facilities of 100 kW or 

more that meet quahfying status as defined under 18 CFR, Chapter 1, Part 292, Subpart B of the Federal 
Energy Regulatory Commission’s regulations and pursuant to the Arizona Corporation Commission’s 
Decision No. 56271. The facility’s generator(s) and load must be located at the same premise. 

Type of Service 

at one standard voltage as may be selected by the consumer. 
Single- or three-phase, alternating currenf 60 cycles, at available secondary or primary voltages 

Monthly Rate 

including the applicable Adjustments: 
The monthly bill shall be the sum of the amounts computed under A, B, C, and D below, 

A. Basic Service: $80.00 per month, plus 
$49.28 per month per each generator meter. 

B. Supplemental Service: 
Demand and energy charges will be in accordance with Schedule No. 2, Commercial and 
Industrial Service - Above 50 kVA, based upon the consumer’s maximum supplemental demand. 

C. Standby Service: 
1. Monthly Reservation Charge: 

2. 

$2.96 per kW of Contract Standby Capacity 

Standby Energy Charge shall be the energy charges applicable under the retail rate 
schedules of the Cooperative that would be applicable absent the generation of the 
qualifying facility. The currently approved charges are: 

To be adjusted as specified herein, plus 

Schedule No. 2, Commercial and Industrial Service - Above 50 kVA 
First 300 kWh/kW $0.07500 per kwh 
Excess k w h  $0.02600 per kwh 
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NAVOPACEIE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 

Lakeside, Arizona 

STANDARD OFFER TARIFF 

SCHEDULE NO. 7 
OPTIONAL ELECTRIC SERVICE FOR QUALLFIED COGENERATION 
AND SMALL POWER PRODUCTION FACDLITIES OVER 100 KW 

D. Maintenance Service: 
The Maintenance Service Energy Charge shall be the energy charges applicable under the retail 
rate schedules of the Cooperative that would be applicable absent the generation of the qualrfying 
facility. The currently approved charges are: 

Schedule No. 2, Commercial and Industrial Service - Above 50 kVA 
All charges will be at the Excess Energy Rate: 
Excess kwh $0.02600 per kWh 

Determination of Monthly Reservation Charge 
The initial Monthly Reservation Charge shall be that charge indicated previously under the 

Monthly Bill section, Part C, 1. At the end of the first five months of winter service under this rate 
schedule, an actual forced outage rate for the cogeneration service received by each consumer shall be 
determined. That actual forced outage rate expressed as a percent shall then be applied to the current unit 
demand charge paid by the Cooperative to its supplier to determine the Monthly Reservation Charge to be 
applied to each consumer for the ensuing twelve months. This process will be repeated for each consumer 
each year to determine the Monthly Reservation Charge to be applied to each consumer for the following 
year. 

Determination of Supplemental Service 

augment the power and energy generated by the consumer’s generation facility. 
Supplemental Service shall be defmed as demand and energy contracted by each consumer to 

Supplemental demand shall be equal to the maximum 15-minute integrated kW demand as 
calculated for every 15 minute interval as the demand of the Supply meter plus the demand of the 
Generator meter(s) less the Contract Standby Capacity of the consumer’s generator(s). 

Supplemental Energy shall be equal to all energy supplied to the consumer as determined fiom 
readings of the Supply meter, less any energy determined to be either Standby or Maintenance energy as 
defined in this schedule. 

Determination of Standby Energy 
Standby Energy shall be defmed to be electric energy supplied by the Cooperative to replace 

power ordinarily generated by the consumer’s generation facility during unscheduled full and partial 
outages of said consumer’s generation facility. 

Standby Energy shall be equal to the sunmation of the differences between the maximum energy 
output of the consumer’s generator(s) at the Contract Standby Capacity and the energy measured on the 
generator meter(s) for every 15-minute interval of the month, except those intervals when energy 
measured on the supply meter(s) is zero. 

All Standby Energy will be billed at the otherwise applicable rate for Supplemental Service when 
the energy used during cogeneration exceeds 250 kWh/kW of Contract Standby Capacity in a monthly 
billing period. 



NAVOPACKE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 
Lakeside, Arizona 

STANDARD OFFER TARIFF 

SCHEDULE NO. 7 
OPTIONAL ELECTRIC SERVICE FOR QUALlk’IED COGENERATION 
AND SMALL POWER PRODUCTION FACILITIES OVER 100 KW 

Determination of Maintenance Energy 
Maintenance Energy shall be defmed as energy supplied to the consumer by the Cooperative up 

to a maximum of the Contract Standby Capacity times the hours in the Scheduled Maintenance period. 
Maintenance periods shall not exceed thirty (30) days per year and must be scheduled during summer 
months. The consumer shall supply the Cooperative with a Maintenance Schedule for the first and each 
ensuing twelve-month period at least sixty (60) days prior to the beginning of that period for the approval 
of the Cooperative. Energy used in excess of a thirty (30) day period or unauthorized Maintenance Energy 
shall be billed as supplemental power and energy. 

Metering 
The Cooperative will install a supply meter at its point of delivery to the consumer and a 

generator meter at each point of output from each of the consumer’s generators. All meters will record 
integrated demand and energy on the same 15-minute interval basis as specified by the Cooperative. 

Definitions 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

Contract Standby Capacitv: The nameplate kW rating of each cogeneration and/or small power 
production generating unit multiplied by the Net Output Factor of each unit, to be reevaluated 
each year. 

Net Output Factor: The ratio of the maximum measured kW output of each cogeneration and/or 
small power production unit during any 15-minute interval to each unit’s nameplate kW rating. 

Forced Outage Rate: The ratio (expressed as a percentage) of the standby energy used during the 
consumer’s On-Peak hours to the product of the Contract Standby Capacity multiplied by those 
hours. 

Generator Meter: The time-of-use meter(s) used to measure in 15-minute intervals the total power 
and energy output of each consumer cogeneration and/or small power production generation unit. 

Supply Meter: The time-of-use meter used to measure in 15-minute intervals the total power and 
energy supplied by the Cooperative to the consumer. 

Time Periods: 
On-Peak: 
off-peak: 
Winter: October through March 
Summer: April through September 

8:OO a.m. to 9:OO p-m. 
9:OO p.m. to 8:OO a.m. 

Mountain Standard Time shall be used in the application of this rate schedule. 
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NAVOPACHE ELECTRIC COOPERATJYE, XNC. 

Lakeside, Arizona 

STANDARD OFFER TARIFF 

SCBOEDULE NO. 7 
OPTIONAL ELECTRIC SERVICE FOR QUALIFIED COGENERATION 

AND SMALL POWER PRODUCTION FACILITIES OVER 100 KW 

Terms and Conditions: Term: Termination 
The consumer must enter into a written agreement for all service hereunder including the 

interconnection and the sale of power and energy with the Cooperative. The contract period shall be for 
the period specified in the written agreement; however, should the consumer cease to operate 
cogeneration andor small power production unit(s) for s ix ty  (60) consecutive days during periods other 
than planned scheduled maintenance periods, the Cooperative reserves the right to terminate any 
agreement for service under this rate schedule with the consumer. 

4 

Tax Adiustment 
The Cooperative is authorized to collect and pass on, by adding to the bill to the consumer, the 

applicable proportionate part of any taxes or government impositions which are or may in the future be 
assessed on the basis of the gross revenues of the Cooperative and/or the price or revenue from the 
electric energy or service sold andor the volume of energy purchased for sale and/or sold hereunder. 

Purchased Power Cost Adiustment 
The Cooperative shall, if purchased power cost is increased or decreased above or below the base 

purchased power cost of $0.066160 per kwh sold, flow through such increases or decreases to all classes 
of consumers. 

Meter Readings 
All meter readings and billings shall be based on actual meter readings, except due to meter 

failure or the inability to obtain an actual reading (e.g., inclement weather) when a reasonable estimate of 
the amount of energy andor billing demand shall be made by the Cooperative. Meter readings and 
billings will be made as closely as practical on the same day each month on a cycle basis. 

Terms of Payment 
Billings made under this schedule will be due and payable upon receipt and past due fifteen (1 5 )  

days from the date the bill is mailed. Service will be subject to disconnect in accordance with the 
Cooperative’s collection policy. 

Demand Side Management Program CDSM) Adder 
The Cooperative shall add to its bill a DSM adder in the amount set forth in its separate DSM cost 

recovery tariff approved by the Arizona Corporation Commission in connection with the Electric Energy 
Efficiency Implementation Plan and Demand Side Management Program filed by the Cooperative. Until 
the Arizona Corporation Commission approves the Cooperative’s DSM cost recovery tariff, the 
Cooperative shall continue to add to its bill the per kwh demand side management program adder in the 
amount recomputed annually based upon reports submitted to the Commission by the Cooperative to help 
offset the costs associated with the Cooperative’s programs designed to promote load management and 
approved by Staff of the Arizona Corporation Commission. 
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NAVOPACHE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 

Lakeside, Arizona 

STANDARD OFFER TARIFF 

SCHEDULE NO. 7 
OPTIONAL ELECTRIC SERVICE FOR QUALIFIED COGENERATION 
AM) SMALL POWER PRODUCTION FACILITIES OVER 100 KW 

Renewable Energy Standard and Tariff CREST) Adder 
The Cooperative shall add to its bill a REST adder in the amount set forth in its separate 

Renewable Energy Standard tariff approved by the Arizona Corporation Commission in connection with 
the Renewable Energy Standard and Tariffhplementation Plan filed by the Cooperative. 

Other Charges 
Other charges may be applicable subject to approval by the Arizona Corporation Commission. 

/ 



NAVOPACHE ELECTRIC COOPERATlV’E, INC. 
Lakeside, Arizona 

STANDARD OFFER TARIFF 

SCHEDULE NO. 8 
COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL - INTERRUPTIBLE 

Effective: For electrical usage beginning on or about 
the cycle billings. 

and billed beginning with 

Availa bilitv 
Available to three-phase customers with a minimum predetermined interruptible aggregate load 

of 1000 kW and who contract for interruptible service for a minimum of five (5) years. The cooperative 
may suspend the availability of this tariff to customers whenever it determines such service can no longer 
be economically offered, subject to the established rules and regdations of the cooperative and the 
Arizona Corporation Commission. 

Tvpe of Service 
Three-phase, 1000 kW or more of aggregate load, alternating current, 60 cycles, at available 

secondary or primary voltages, subject to interruption. 

Monthly Rate 

Distribution Charges 

STANDARD Power Meter 
RATE 1 Supply Metering Reading Billing 

Customer Charge 
($/Customer/h4o.) $423.67 $5.40 $11.79 
Billing Demand 
Charge ($kW of 
Billing Demand) $2.35 
On-Peak Demand 
($/On-Peak kW - 
Interrupt Period) $22.51 
Energy Charge 
t$kwh) $0.02200 

Access - 
$63.14 1 $488.00 1 $504.00 

$22.51 

$.OIL29 $.01129 $0.03329 

Determination of Billing Demand 
The amount of demand subject to the Billing Demand Charge to be billed each month under this 

rate schedule for each interruptible billing account shall be the greater of: 

1. 
2. The Predetermined Interruptible Demand. 

The Maximum Actual Demand, excluding the Firm Demand; or 

The Maximum Actual Demand for each interruptible billing account shall be the highest 
simultaneous fifteen (15) minute demand at the delivery point(s) for service to the customer during the 
billing month measured at the billing meter(s). The amount shall be adjusted, if necessary, to account for 
losses between the location(s) of the billing meter(s) and the point(s) of delivery to the customer. 
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NAVOPACHE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 

Lakeside, Arizona 

STANDARD OFFER TARTFF 

SCHEDULE NO. 8 
COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL - INTERRUPTIBLE 

The Firm Demand for each interruptible billing account shall be the sum of the non-coincident 
demand(s) measured at each billing meter during the billing month which the cooperative and the 
customer agree shall not be subject to interruption and for which the customer agrees to be separately 
metered and billed under the cooperative’s applicable non-interruptible rate schedule. 

The Predetermined Interruptible Demand for each interruptible billing account shall be the 
contractual minimum aggregate demand during the billing month. The customer and the cooperative may 
agree with not less than thirty (30) days notice, to change the Predetermined Interruptible Demand; 
provided, however, the aggregate demand subject to simultaneous interruption may not be less than 1000 
kW for any interruptible account and only increments of whole megawatts shall be permitted. 

Determining of On-Peak Demand 
The On-Peak Demand for each interruptible billing account shall be the highest simultaneous 

fifteen (15) minute demand at the delivery point(s) for service to the customer during a period of called 
intemption as defined in the Provisions of Interruptions below. This charge is only applicable if the 
customer chooses not to interrupt load. 

Determination of BiIlinP EnerW (kWh) 
The Energy Charge to be billed each month under this rate schedule for each interruptible billing 

account shall be the sum of the total energy measured during the billing month at the delivery point(s) for 
service to the customer, excluding any energy the customer takes during the same period under any other 
rate schedule(s). This amount shall be adjusted, ifnecessary, to account for losses between the location(s) 
of the bilIing meter(s) and the point(s) of delivery to the customer. 

Power Factor Adiustment 
The consumer agrees to maintain unity power factor as nearly as practical. The cooperative may 

install power factor metering devices at its discretion. Demand charges will be adjusted for consumers 
with 50 kW or more of measured demand to correct for power factors during any period of fifteen 
consecutive minutes is lower than 90%, and may be so adjusted for other consumers if and when the 
Seller deems necessary. Such adjustments will be made by increasing the measured demand 1% for each 
1% by which the power factor during any period of fifteen consecutive minutes is less than 90% lagging. 

Delivery of Primary Service (Discount) 
When a customer taking service at voltage of 14,400 and above and in excess of 1000 kW, 

furnishes his own transformer and substation equipment, and receives delivery of electricity at primary 
voltage metering, a discount of 3% shall be allowed on mont-hIy bills for primary metering. The 3% 
discount will not be allowed on the purchased power cost adjustment that is shown separately on this bill 
or on the Continuation Charge. 

The cooperative shall have the right to approve of transformers and substation equipment 
furnished by the consumer under this type of service. 



NAVOPACHE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 
Lakeside, Arizona 

STANDARD OFFER TARIFF 

SCHEDULE NO. 8 
COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL - INTERRUPTIBLE 

Tax Adjustment 
The applicable sales tax in Arizona will be added to bills where required. 

The cooperative is authorized to pass on to the consumers the applicable proportionate part of any 
taxes or government impositions which are or may in the future be assessed on the basis of the gross revenues 
of the cooperative. 

Purchased Power Cost Adjustment 

power cost of $0.066160 per kwh sold, flow through such increases or decreases to all classes of consumers. 
The utility shall, if purchased power cost is increased or decreased above or below the base purchased 

Meter Readings 

will be made as closely as practical on the same day each month on a cycle basis. 
All meter readings and billings shall be based on actual meter readings. Meter readings and billings 

Terms of Payment 
Billing made under this schedule will be due and payable upon receipt and past due fifteen (15) days 

from the date the bill is mailed. Service will be subject to disconnect in accordance with the cooperative’s 
collection policy. 

Scheduline of Enerm 
Customer, by the third Friday of each month and in a manner specified by cooperative and 

cooperative’s power supplier, shall request a scheduled energy amount per month (Scheduled Energy 
Amount). Scheduling shall be in accordance with the normal scheduling procedures of cooperative and its 
power supplier. The Scheduled Energy Amount shall be in whole megawatts rounded up. 

Modifications Caused by Power Supplier 
Cooperative may modify any non-rate term or condition of this Tariff Schedule and the individual 

contracts executed thereunder to reflect the terms and conditions under which cooperative’s power supplier 
provides interruptible service with notice and continuation service; provided, however, no change in a term or 
condition set forth in this Tariff Schedule shall be effective until such change is filed with and approved by the 
Commission. 

In the event the rates in this Tariff Schedule no longer cover the actual charges for interruptible 
service with notice and continuation service from the cooperative’s wholesale power supplier, including all on- 
and off-system wheeling charges and losses, plus an amount equal to five percent (5%) thereof to compensate 
cooperative for operating costs, overhead and administration (Power Costs), cooperative shall file for 
Commission review and approval rates for interruptible service with notice and continuation service sufficient 
to cover such Power Costs. 
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NAVOPACHE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 

Lakeside, Arizona 

STANDARD OFFER TARIFF 

SCmDULE NO. 8 
COMMERCIAL AM) INDUSTRIAL - INTERRUPTIBLE 

Provisions for Interruption 
Interruption shall be in accordance with the following: 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

9. 

10. 

Interruptions may be declared for any reason including, without limitations, sales at a greater 
return. 

Interruptions, not relating to system integrity or stability, may only be declared during the 
following hours: 

April through September 11:30 am. - 4:30 p.m., Arizona Local Time 
October through March 5:OO p.m. - 1O:OO p.m., Arizona Local Time 

Interruptions may be declared at any time for system integrity or stability reasons. 

The customer shall be provided not less than 20 minutes notice before service is actually 
interrupted under this rate schedule. Advance notice of a period of interruption shall only be 
required where continuation service is not available at the cost level pre-authorized by the 
customer. Cooperative is not required to provide advance notice before limiting service to the 
Predetermined Interruptible Demand level. Such service limitation does not constitute an 
interruption. 

Cooperative will endeavor to keep the customer reasonably informed of the expected duration 
of the interruption and also the terms under which service may be continued or resumed under 
the Continuation of Service provisions. 

Any time after the customer has received at least 20 minutes prior notification that a period of 
interruption has been declared, service under this rate schedule may be interrupted for any 
duration and from time to time without limitation during the period of interruption. 

The customer will be notified when the period of interruption is no longer in effect. 

Notice shall be provided in the manner specified by the cooperative and the cooperative’s 
power supplier. Notice provided shall be deemed duly given whether or not actually received 
by the customer. 

The customer must provide the necessary facilities, acceptable to the cooperative and the 
cooperative’s power supplier, to enable the cooperative andor its power supplier to remotely 
interrupt and control the load and must allow the cooperative andor its power supplier to 
control the interruption. 

The customer shall be responsible for all costs associated with installing the necessary 
equipment in order for the customer to take service under this rate schedule. 
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11. 

12. 

13. 

14. 

NAVOPACHE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 
Lakeside, Arizona 

STANDARD OFFER TAlUFF 

SCHEDULE NO. 8 
COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL - INTERRUPTIBLE 

Without declaring an interruption under the terms of this rate schedule, service to a customer 
under this rate schedule may be limited to the Predetermined Interruptible Demand 

The cooperative and its power supplier will not be liable for any loss of damage caused by or 
resulting from any interruption of service. 

The customer shall not transfer, during periods of interruption, any load served under this rate 
schedule to any other fm rate schedule. 

The cooperative may, at its sole discretion, direct the customer and its power supplier to 
comnunicate directly with regard to service rendered under this rate schedule. 

Demand Side Management Procram (DSM) Adder 
The Cooperative shall add to its bill a DSM adder in the amount set forth in its separate DSM cost 

recovery tariff approved by the Arizona Corporation Commission in connection with the Electric Energy 
Efficiency Implementation Plan and Demand Side Management Program filed by the Cooperative. Until 
the Arizona Corporation Commission approves the Cooperative’s DSM cost recovery tariff, the 
Cooperative shall continue to add to its bill the per kWh demand side management program adder in the 
amount recomputed annmlly based upon reports submitted to the Commission by the Cooperative to help 
offset the costs associated with the Cooperative’s programs designed to promote load management and 
approved by Staff of the Arizona Corporation Commission. 

Renewable Energy Standard and Tariff (REST) Adder 
The Cooperative shall add to its bill a REST adder in the amount set forth in its separate 

Renewable Energy Standard tariff approved by the Arizona Corporation Commission in connection with 
the Renewable Energy Standard and Tariff Implementation Plan filed by the Cooperative. 

Other Charges 
Other charges may be applicable subject to approval by the Arizona Corporation Commission. 
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NAVOPACHE ELECTRIC COOPERATXVE, INC. 

Lakeside, Arizona 

RENEWABLE ENERGY STANDARD TARIFF 

SCHEDULE NO. 9 

Effective: July 1, 2008 

Renewable Energy Standard (“RES”) Surcharge 

On all bills for governmental and agricultural customers with multiple meters, an RES Surcharge 
mandated by the Arizona Corporation Commission will be assessed monthly at the lesser of 
$0.000875 per kilowatt-hour of retail electricity purchased by the consumer, or: 

Governmental and Agricultural Customers: 

Governmentar and Agricultural Customers whose. metered demand is 3,000 kW or more for 3 
consecutive months: $39.00 per service. 

$ 13 per service; 

In the case of unrnetered services, the Load-Serving Entity shall, for the purposes of billing the 
RES Surcharge and subject to the caps set forth above, use the lesser of (i) the load profile or 
otherwise estimated kWh required to provide the service in question; or (ii) the service’s contract 
kwh. 

On all bills in all other tariff service categories than those listed above, an RES Surcharge 
mandated by the Arizona Corporation Commission will be assessed monthIy at the lesser of 
$0.004988 per kilowatt-hour of retail electricity purchased by the customer, or: 

Residential Customers: $ 1.05 per service; 

Non-Residential Customers: $ 39.00 per service; 

Non-Residential Customers whose metered demand is 3,000 kW or more for 3 consecutive 
months: $ 117.00 per service. 

In the case of unmetered services, the Load-Serving Entity shall, for purposes of billing the RES 
Surcharge and subject to the caps set forth above, use the lesser of (i) the load profile or otherwise 
estimated k w h  required to provide the service in question; or (ii) the service’s contract kwh. 

The RES Surcharge is in addition to all other rates and charges applicable to service to the 
customer. 
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NAVOPACHE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 

Lakeside, Arizona 

STANDARD OFFER TAIUFF 

VOLUNTARY RENEWABLE ENERGY PROGRAM 

SCHEDULENO. 10 

Effective: 
August 1, 2008 cycle billings. 

For electrical usage beginning on July 1,2008 and billed beginning with the 

Availability 
Available as an option to all residential and non-residential standard offer members of the 
Cooperative to participate in the cooperative's renewable energy program. Not applicable for resale, 
breakdown, standby or auxiliary service. This service is subject to the Cooperative's rules and 
regulations. ./ 

Type of Service 
Available to all classes of members, regardless of service entrance size or installed infrastructure 
located at the member's residence or place of business. 

Monthly Rate 
$2.00 per month for each block of 50 kWh of electric generation from renewable resources. 
Members electing this option may purchase one or more blocks. The rate is in addition to the 
otherwise applicable charges for all k w h  consumed under standard offer service provided by the 
Cooperative. 

Members of the Cooperative may enroll at any time, effective at the beginning of the next billing 
month. Members may terminate their participation at any time by notifying the Cooperative; 
termination is effective at the end of the current billing month. Terminations made in conjunction 
with termination of all service from the Cooperative are effective at the time of such termination. 

Conditions 
All funds collected under this Schedule will be used solely to construct, operate, and maintain 
renewable energy projects carried out by the Cooperative in Arizona, including solar electric 
generating projects. Electric energy generated by renewable resources in blended with other energy 
throughout the Cooperative's distribution system. Energy delivered to members electing this option 
will consist of such blended energy. 

Tax Adiustment 
The applicable sales tax in Arizona will be added to bills where required. The cooperative is 
authorized to pass on to the consumers the applicable proportionate part of any taxes or government 
impositions, which are or may in the hture be assessed on the basis of the gross revenues of 
the cooperative- 

Terms of Pavment 
Billing made under this schedule will be due and payable upon receipt and past due fifteen (15) 
days from the date the bill is mailed. Service will be subject to disconnect in accordance with 
the cooperative's collection policy. 
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RENEWABLE ENERGY 
CUSTOMER SELF-DIRECTED TARJJ?F 
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SCHEDULE NO. 11 

Effective: July 1,2008 

Renewable Energy Standard ("RES") Customer Self-Directed Option 

Application 

The RES Customer Self-Directed Option is applicable to single and'ihree phase service for Non- 
Residential Customers with multiple meters that pay more than $ 25,000 annually in RES Surcharge 
funds pursuant to the Renewable Energy Standard Tariff for any number of related accounts or 
services within the Cooperative's service territory. This sixvice is subject to the Cooperative's rules and 
regulations. 

Eligible Customer 

An Eligible Customer may apply to the Cooperative to receive funds to install Distributed Renewable 
Energy Resources. An Eligible Customer seeking to participate in this program shall submit to the 
Cooperative a written application that describes the Renewable Energy Resources that it proposes to 
install and the projected cost of the project. An Eligible Customer shall provide at least half of the 
funding necessary to complete the project described in its application. 

An Eligible Customer shall enter into a contract with the Cooperative that specifies, at a 
minimum, the following information: the type of Distributed Generation (''DG") resource, its total 
estimated cost, kwh output, its completion date, the expected life of the DG system, a schedule of 
Eligible Customer expenditures and invoices for the DG system, Cooperative payments to an Eligible 
Customer for the DG system, and the amount of a Security Bond or Letter of Credit necessary to 
ensure the future operation of the Eligible Customers' DG system, metering equipment, maintenance, 
insurance, and related co-sts. 

If proposed to be connected to the Cooperative's electrical system, an Eligible Customer's DG 
resource shall meet all of the Cooperative's DG interconnection requirements and guidelines before 
being connected to the Cooperative's electrical system. 

All Renewable Energy Credits derived from the project, including generation and extra credit 
multipliers, shall be applied to satisfy the Cooperative's Annual Renewable Energy Requirement. 

The funds annually received by an Eligible Customer pursuant to this tariff may not exceed the amount 
annually paid by the Eligible Customer pursuant to the RES Surcharge Tariff. 
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NAVOPACHE: ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 
Lakeside, Arizona 

TARKFF SCEIEDULE 
OF 

MISCELLANEOUS CHARGES 

Effective: August 1,20 12 

Application 
As specified in the Cooperative’s Policy Manual. 

MISCELLANEOUS CHARGES 

DESCRIPTION OF FEE 

Reconnection Fee During Regular Service Hours 
Re-establishment Fee During Regular Service Hours 
Relocation or Upgrade of Service Facility Requiring Two (2) 
Trips to Service Location During Regular Service Hours 
Relocation of Service Wires and Meter for Temporary to 
Permanent hcation during Regular Service Hours 
Service Calls Due to Failure of Customer Ekpipment or Customer 
Negligence and After Regular Service Hours 

Establishment Fee 
Service Fee for Each Additional Service or Location 
Service Connection Callbacks 
Service Violation Fee (First Violation) 
Service Violation Fee (Additional Violations) 
Special Meter Readings (Check Readings) 
NSF Fee 
Late Payment Interest Fee 
Field Collection re Delinquent Accounts 
Meter Test Fee 
Temporary and Doubtful Permanency Service 

70.00 
90.00 
50.00 

75.00 

Actual Labor, Material, 
Equipment & Administrative 
Costs as Established by 
Cooperative Plus Average Cost 
Per Mile 
50.00 
25.00 
25.00 
100.00 
150.00 
25.00 
30.00 
1.5% 
25.00 
50.00 
Estimated Labor, Material, 
Equipment & Administrative 
Costs as Established by 
Cooperative Plus Average Cost 
Per Mile 



ATTACHMIENT 4 

Notice to Customers 



IM - 

$ Increase in Mo. 
Service Charge 

Commercial and Industrial $4.00 Secondary 
$8.00 Primary 

$5.00 Secondary 
$8.00 Primary 

Commercial and Industrial TOU 

Irrigation and Water Pumping $2.23 

TO U 
Security Lights Pole Charge $0.17 

Irrigation and Water Pumping $2.23 

ORTANT RATE IN 

$ Increase in per kW $ Increase in per kWh 
Billing Demand Charge Energy Charge 

$0.25 $0.00385 first 300 kWh/kW 
$0.00144 over 300 

kWh/kW 
$0.25 $0.00127 

$0.24 $0.00428 
$0.00 On Peak 

$0.25 $0.00191 
$0.43 On-Peak 

$0.00 Various** 

REASE NOTICE - PLEASE READ 
Navopache Electric Cooperative (“NEC” or “Cooperative”) has notified the Arizona Corporation Commission 
(“Commission”) that it intends to file a streamlined application (“Streamlined Application”) no later than 
September 15, 2014, to  increase its rates and charges pursuant to  A.R.S. § 40-250 and A.A.C. R14-2-107 (“Rule 
107”), the Commission’s rule authorizing the filing of  streamlined rate applications for electric and natural gas 
cooperatives. NEC is requesting an overall system-wide rate increase of $1,908,652 or 4% over actual test year 
total system-wide base revenue, which is  less than the 6% overall increase in base revenues ($2,863,210) allowed 
under Rule 107. NEC states that the rate increase is necessary to recover increased operating costs in the 
following categories: purchased power, operation and maintenance, customer service/administration, 
depreciation and amortization, taxes, interest and payroll. NEC further states that the rate increase will allow NEC 
to  maintain the financial integrity of the Cooperative. The last general rate increase for NEC was effective August 
1,2012, based on data from mostly 2009. 

The proposed increase by customer class is reflected in the tables below. 

100% of the ResidentiaI/Small Commercial customer increase will be in the monthly customer charge. A decrease 
in usage by a residential or small commercial customer will not lessen the increase from this rate proposal. 

Residential and Small Commercial 
I Increase per MO. I I lncreaseper~o. 1 

I Residential Service I $2.67* I Small Commercial I $2.23 I 
I Residential TOU 6 Month I $2.67 I Small Commercial TOU 6 Month I $2.23 I 
I Residential TOU 12 Month I $2.67 I Small Commercial TOU 12 Month I $2.23 1 
*The residential rate increase in the table above represents the overall 4% rate increase NEC has proposed and reflects the amount the 
monthly bill will increase for average usage (443 kWh/month) and median usage (349 kWh/month). If a 6% rate increase had been 
requested for total base revenue and for the residential class, the monthly bill impact for a residential customer with average usage of 443 
kWh would have been $3.36 and for a residential customer with median usage of 349 kWh would have been $2.81. 



(possibly less costly) review/analysis by Commission Staf f  than a Rule 103 review/analysis. NEC’s Streamlined 
Application may be approved without a formal evidentiary hearing. However, the Commission may at any time - 
a t  the request of  Staff, an Intervenor, or on i ts own - require NEC’s rate increase application to be processed 
pursuant to the more comprehensive Rule 103 requirements. You can view the entire Rule 103 and 107 a t  
http://www.azsos.gov/public~services/Title~l4/14-02. htm#ARTICLE-1. 

Public Comment and Intervention 

A person desiring to object t o  the Streamlined Application or to  request intervention in the rate case shall file the 
objection or the intervention request not later than the date specified below. Within 14 days after the deadline 
for objections and intervention requests, the Commission’s Utilities Division Staf f  must determine the eligibility 
and sufficiency of the Streamlined Application under Rule 107. 

Written public comments regarding NEC’s Streamlined Application, including objections to  it being processed 
pursuant to the alternative Rule 107 streamlined requirements, may be submitted by mailing a letter referencing 
Docket No. E-01787A-14-0302 to the Commission’s Consumer Services Section a t  1200 W. Washington, Phoenix, 
Arizona 85007, or by e-mail. For a form to use and instructions on how to  e-mail comments to the Commission, 
go to: http://www.azcc.gov/Divisions/Utilities/forms/PublicCommentForml.pdf. 

Requests to intervene may be filed in Docket No. E-01787A-14-0302 by any person entitled by law to  intervene or 
who is directly and substantially affected by the proceeding. If you require assistance, either to provide public 
comment or to seek intervention, you may contact the Commission’s Consumer Services Section a t  602-542-4251 
or 1-800-222-7000, or you may contact NEC during normal business hours a t  928-368-5118 or 800-543-6324. All 
motions to intervene and all objections to  the Application must be filed on or before September 24, 2014. 

The Rule 107 streamlined rate process is available to NEC only if the Commission receives objections from less 
than 1,000 NEC customers by September 24, 2014. If the Commission receives objections from at least 1,000 
NEC customers by September 24,2014, NEC will not be eligible to use the Rule 107 streamlined process, but will 
instead need to use the Rule 103 rate increase application process which would involve a formal evidentiary 
hearing and a more comprehensive review/analysis by Commission Staff. 

How You Can View or Obtain a Copy of the Application and Other Filed Documents 

A copy of the Streamlined Application is available for public inspection during regular business hours on NEC’s 
website a t  www.navopache.org; and NEC’s main office located at 1878 W. White Mountain Blvd., Lakeside, 
Arizona 85929. After September 15, 2014, a copy of the Streamlined Application will also be available for public 
inspection during regular business hours a t  the Commission’s Docket Control Center a t  1200 W. Washington 
Street, Phoenix, Arizona, 85007, in the Commission’s Tucson Office a t  400 W. Congress, Tucson, Arizona, 85701 
and on the Internet via the Commission’s website (www.azcc.gov) using the e-Docket function. 

NEC Contact Information 
Navopache Electric Cooperative, Inc., 1878 W. White Mountain Blvd., Lakeside, Arizona 85929 
Phone: (928) 368-5118 or 1-800-543-6324 

ADA/Equal Access Information 

The Commission does not discriminate on the basis of disability in admission to  i ts public meetings. Persons with 
a disability may request a reasonable accommodation, such as a sign language interpreter, as well as request this 
document in an alternative format, by contacting the ADA Coordinator, Shaylin Bernal, e-mail SABernal@azcc.gov, 
voice phone number 602-542-3931. Requests should be made as early as possible to allow time to  arrange the 
accommodation. 

http://www.azcc.gov/Divisions/Utilities/forms/PublicCommentForml.pdf
mailto:SABernal@azcc.gov
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BEFORE THE ARIZONA CORPORATION COMMISSION 

COMMISSIONERS 
BOB STUMP, 

Chairman 
GARY PIERCE, 

Commissioner 
BRENDA BURNS, 

Commissioner 
BOB BURNS, 

Commissioner 
SUSAN BITTER SMITH, 

Commissioner 

N THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION 
OF NAVOPACHE ELECTRIC 

DETERMINATION OF THE FAIR VALUE 
OF ITS PROPERTY FOR RATEMAKING 
PURPOSES, TO FIX A JUST AND 
REASONABLE RATE OF RETURN 
THEREON, TO APPROVE RATES 
DESIGNED TO DEVELOP SUCH RETURN, 
AND FOR RELATED APPROVALS. 

COOPERATIVE, INC., FOR A 

DOCKET NO. E-01787A-14-0302 

PROPOSED FORM OF ORDER 

DECISION NO. 

ORDER 

Open Meeting 
[meeting dates] 
Phoenix, Arizona 

BY THE COMMISSION; 

Having considered the entire record herein and being fully advised in the premises, the Arizon: 

Corporation Commission (“Commissionyy) finds, concludes and orders that: 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. In Decision No. 73649 (February 6, 2013), the Commission adopted a new section ir 

the Arizona Administrative Code (“A.A.C.”) R14-2- 107, establishing an alternative streamlinec 

ratemaking application and process for nonprofit cooperatives providing electric or natural gas utili0 

service (“Rule 107”). This decision also amended the existing rule establishing the filing anc 

processing requirements for a public service corporation rate application (“Rule 103”). 
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2. On July 9, 2014, Navopache Electric Cooperative, Inc. (“NEC” or the “Cooperative” 

began the process of a rate application under Rule 107 by submitting to Commission’s Utilitie 

Division (“Staff’) a Request for Pre-Filing Eligibility Review in accordance with A.A.C. R14-2 

107(C). 

3. On August 14, 2014, NEC met with Staff in accordance with A.A.C. R14-2-107(C)(3 

to review eligibility in filing under Rule 107, finalize the form of customer notice and discuss , 

proposed form of recommended order. 

4. On August 14, 2014, NEC filed a Request for Docket Number and Notice of Filinl 

Proposed Form of Customer Notice. A Docket Number was assigned opening this rate applicatioi 

docket. 

5. On August 28, 2014, NEC filed a Notice of Mailing Customer Notice. The Custome 

Notice was mailed via first class mail to all NEC Arizona customers on August 21, 2014. Thl 

customer notice set a deadline of September 24, 2014 for customers of NEC to file interventioi 

requests and/or objections to the rate application that NEC anticipated filing on September 11 , 2014. 

6. On September 11, 2014, NEC filed its application for a rate increase (thc 

“Application”) under Rule 107 in Docket No. E-01787A-14-0302. 

7. By the close of business on September 10, 2014, the Commission and NEC combine( 

had received ten (10) objections to the rate increase, below the 1,000 required to make NEC ineligiblc 

for the Rule 107 process. There was one (1) intervention request filed. 

8. On , 2014, Staff filed a letter of eligibility in the docket indicatinj 

that NEC had met all of the requirements outlined in Rule 107. 

9. On , 2014, Staff filed a letter of sufficiency indicating the datt 

provided by NEC in the Application was sufficient in meeting the requirements of a cooperative ratt 

application. 
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DESCRIPTION OF NEC 

10. NEC, a tax exempt 501(C)(12) cooperative, was formed in 1946 and is headquartered 

in Lakeside, Arizona. The Cooperative is an Arizona public service corporation that as of Decembei 

3 1, 2013 was providing electric distribution service to approximately 38,399 meters located in parts ol 

Navajo, Apache, Greenlee and Gila Counties, Arizona. NEC also provides electric distribution service 

to approximately 1,553 meters in Catron County, New Mexico. 

11. 

12. 

NEC is as a Class A utility under A.A.C. R14-2-103(A)(3)(q). 

NEC receives its power supply under a power supply contract with Public Service 

Company of New Mexico. 

13. NEC has an 8-member Board of Directors (“Board”) elected by the Cooperative’: 

members that oversees all aspects of the Cooperative’s operations and approves the annual operating 

budget. The Board approved the filing of the Application at a special meeting of the Board held on 

June 18,2014. 

14. NEC’s current rates and charges are based on a test year ending April 30, 2010 and 

approved in Decision No. 73255 on July 30, 2012. The current rates went into effect August 1, 2012 

for NEC’s Arizona customers. 

NEC PROPOSALS 

15. 

16. 

In the Application, NEC utilized a test year ending December 3 1,2013. 

NEC seeks authority from the Commission to adjust its rates to produce an additional 

$1,908,652 in system-wide base revenues over the $47,720,188 produced during the Test Year 

reflecting a 4% increase. In Arizona, the proposed rates will produce an additional $133 1,245 in base 

revenues over the $46,664,959 produced during the Test year, reflecting a 3.28% increase. The rate 

increase would yield system-wide Operating Income (Margins) of $1,886,594 and Net Income 

(Return) of $4,465,647. NEC’s request, if granted, will result in a 5.11% system-wide rate of return 

on a Fair Value Rate Base (“FVRB”) of $87,400,193. 
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17. Also in the Application, NEC requested to increase its annual gross system-wide 

revenue requirement by $1,646,693, from adjusted test year total revenues of $55,011,125 tc 

$56,657,818. This increase represents an increase of 3.0% over adjusted test year total revenue (the 

increase is an increase of 4.0% over adjusted test year base revenue). 

18. In its filing, NEC stated the rate application would result in system-wide Operating 

Income of $4,465,647 and Net Income of $1,886,594. 

19. NEC stated the rate increase is necessary to recover increased operating costs in the 

categories of operation and maintenance, consumer accounts, customer service and information, sales 

administration and general, depreciation and amortization, taxes, interest and payroll. The rate 

increase would allow NEC to maintain the financial integrity of the Cooperative. 

20. As attachments to the Application, NEC submitted audited financial statements for the 

year ended April 30,2014, and a copy of its certified annual financial and statistical report to the Rura 

Utilities Service (“RUS”) for the calendar year 20 13. 

COOPERATIVE ELIGIBILTIY 

2 1. For a cooperative to utilize the streamlined rate case process referred to as Rule 107 

several eligibility requirements must be met prior to beginning the process. As documented in the 

letter of eligibility, Staff agrees that NEC has taken the necessary steps to comply with the eligibilio 

requirements of Rule 107. 

STAFF ANALYSIS 

22. As part of its review of the Application, Staff reviewed the purchased power costs, tht 

fuel bank balance, the base revenue increase and test year data, the level of increase requested for eacl 

rate schedule/class, the applicability of the capital projects and Plant In Service (“PIS”), the 

acceptability of system losses and reliability indices, the proposed rate base, revenue, expenses and the 

proposed revenue requirement, and also completed a compliance review. 

23. NEC and Staff, the only parties to this case, are in agreement on all issues in this case. 

-4- 
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Purchased Power Costs 

24. NEC reported purchased power costs for the test year equal to $4,318,944 (with twc 

adjustments to purchased power costs equal to $4,187,987). These adjustments were attributed tc 

recalculating using a PPCA factor based on the adjusted test and adjusting the PPCA (Over) Unde 

Recovery to $0, increasing revenue $2,266,98 1. 

25. 

26. 

NEC and Staff agree on the adjusted purchased power costs filed in the Application. 

NEC did not calculate a new base cost of power in the Application. Rule 107 specifie 

that the increase request of a maximum of 6% is in base revenue not attributed to revenue from a 

adjustor mechanism. In the Application, revenue attributed to the Purchased Power and Fuel Cos 

Adjustor (“PPFCA”) was treated as revenue from an adjustor. As a result, the revenue from thc 

PPFCA was held constant from the test year and the base cost of power remained unchanged for thc 

purpose of calculating the PPFCA adjustor. The PPFCA is designed to recover or refund thc 

difference between the base cost of power included in the Cooperative’s base rates and the actual cos 

of power. 

27. NEC and Staff agree on the definition of base revenue and agree the base cost of powe 

should remain unchanged at $0.066 160. 

Rate Design 

28. NEC’s proposed increase is below the maximum increase of 6% permitted under Rult 

107. Also in accordance with Rule 107, the monthly customer charge increase of 2.6% for tht 

residential rate class is less than 25% and there are no changes requested to the block rates. NEC dic 

not propose any “rate structure change” or “non-price tariff change” as defined by Rule 107. 

29. NEC and Staff agree on the rates set forth in Exhibit A, which is attached hereto anc 

incorporated herein. 
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Staff Engineering 

30. Staff‘ physically inspected NEC’s distribution facilities on , 2014. Staf 

=valuated the Cooperative from an engineering perspective based on key metrics, an analysis o 

;onstruction expenditures included in PIS and a facilities inspection. 

3 1. Based on its analysis, Staff concluded that NEC: 

a. has, since its last rate case, developed its system with a focus on improvinl 

reliability, including wood pole replacements and expanding its supervisory contro 

and data acquisition system; 

b. has an acceptable level of system losses, consistent with industry guidelines; and 

c. has a satisfactory System Average Interruption Duration Index in the historic perioc 

from 2009 through 20 13, reflecting a satisfactory level of reliability. 

32. Staff finds the projects constructed and included in PIS since NEC’s last rate case to bi 

used and useful. 

Rate Base, Revenues, and Expenses 

33. The Application requested rate base of $87,400,193, adjusted test year revenues o 

$55,011,125, and expenses of $52,192,171 on a system-wide basis. 

34. NEC and Staff are in agreement on the proposed rate base, revenues, and expenses an( 

recommends adoption. 

Revenue Requirement and Rate of Return 

35. NEC proposed a system-wide revenue requirement of $56,657,818. The proposec 

revenue requirement would produce an operating income of $4,465,647 for a 5.1 1% rate of return anc 

yield net income of $2,114,358. 

36. NEC’s proposed revenue would produce a 1.75 times interest earned ratio and a 1.6’ 

debt service coverage ratio. 

37. NEC and Staff recommend adoption of NEC’s proposed revenue requirement. 
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Consumer Services 

38. Staff reviewed the Commission’s records between January 1, 2012 and December 31 

20 14 and found __ complaints during that period of time. All of those complaints have been resolvec 

and closed. To date in 2015, Consumer Services has received __ complaint(s) regarding quality o 

service, which is [opedclosed]. 

CONCLUSIONS 

39. NEC’s Application is in compliance with Rule 107 allowing NEC’s rate case to bt 

processed under the alternative streamlined process. 

40. 

41. 

42. 

NEC and Staff are not requesting a hearing in this matter. 

NEC’s OCRB and FVRB is determined to be $87,400,193. 

NEC’s proposed rate increases for each customer class are within the guideline: 

established in Rule 107. 

43. During the thirty (30) days customers had in which to object to the rate increase, onl: 

ten (1 0) customers filed objections which is below the number required to cease processing under Rulc 

107. 

44. Staff is in agreement with NEC’s proposed rate base of $87,400,193, adjusted test yea 

revenues of $55,011,125, and expenses $52,192,171. 

45. The rates and charges approved herein will produce an operating income of $4.465.64’ 

for a 5.1 1 percent rate of return and yield net income of $1,886,594. 

46. The rates and charges approved herein will produce a 1.75 times interest earned ratic 

(“TIER”) and a 1.65 debt service coverage ratio (“DSC”). 

47. The rates and charges approved herein will increase system-wide revenues bJ 

$1,646,693, or a 3.0% increase in total revenue (an increase of 4.0% in total base revenue). 

The rate design proposed by NEC and agreed to by Staff should be adopted. 

The base cost of power should remain at $0.066160 per kwh. 

48. 

49. 
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50. Under the rates approved herein, a residential customer with average monthly usage I 

443 kWh will experience a rate increase in base revenue of $2.67 (4.76%) from the current amount I 

$56.05 to $58.72. The median residential customer with a monthly consumption of 349 kWh w 

experience a rate increase in base revenue of $2.67 (5.69%) from the current amount of $46.92 

$49.59. 

5 1. NEC and Staff are in agreement that a hearing is not required in this case. 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

1. Navopache Electric Cooperative, Inc. is a public service corporation within tl 

meaning of Article X V  of the Arizona Constitution and A.R.S. $ 3  40-250 and 40-251. 

2. The Commission has jurisdiction over Navopache Electric Cooperative, Inc. and tl 

subject matter of the Application. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

forth in Exhibit A. 

Notice of the Application was given in accordance with law. 

The rates and changes authorized herein are just and reasonable. 

It is just and reasonable and in the public interest to approve the rates and charges s 

ORDER 

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that the rates and charges set forth in Exhibit A be and heret 

%e approved for Navopache Electric Cooperative, Inc. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Navopache Electric Cooperative, Inc. is hereby directed 1 

&le, on or before 1, 2015, tariffs with a new schedule of rates and charges consistent wil 

Exhibit A. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the revised schedules of rates and charges shall be effectil 

For 20 15 usage billed on or after ,2015. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Navopache Electric Cooperative, Inc. shall notify i 

xstomers of the revised schedules of rates and charges authorized herein by means of an insert in 

-8- 
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Form acceptable to Staff, included in its next regularly scheduled billing, and by posting on its website. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that this Decision shall become effective immediately. 

BY THE ORDER OF THE ARIZONA CORPORATION COMMISSION 

CHAIRMAN COMMISSIONER 

COMMISSIONER COMMISSIONER COMMISSIONER 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I, JODI JERICH, Executive 
Director of the Arizona Corporation Commission, haw 
hereunto, set my hand and caused the official seal of thi: 
Commission to be affixed at the Capitol, in the City oJ 
Phoenix, this day of , 2015. 

JODI JERICH 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

DISSENT: 

DISSENT: 
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SERVICE LIST FOR: Navopache Electric Cooperative, Inc. 
DOCKET NO. E-01787A-14-0302 

Mr. Michael A. Curtis 
Ivlr. William P. Sullivan 
Curtis, Goodwin, Sullivan, 
Udal1 & Schwab, PLC 

501 E. Thomas Rd. 
Phoenix, Arizona 85012 

Ms. Lyn A. Fanner, Esq. 
Chief Administrative Law Judge 
Hearing Division 
ARIZONA CORPORATION COMMISSION 
1200 West Washington Street 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

Mi. Steven M. Olea 
Director, Utilities Division 
ARIZONA CORPORATION COMMISSION 
1200 West Washington Street 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

Ms. Janice M. Alward, Esq. 
Chief Counsel, Legal Division 
ARIZONA CORPORATION COMMISSION 
1200 West Washington Street 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 
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EXHIBIT A 



NAVOPACHE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 

Residenfial, Schools, Churches, and Community Halls 
Standard Rate 
Customer Charge 
Energy Charge, per kWh 

First 400 kWh per month 
Over 400 kWh per month 

Optional Time-of-Use ("TOW) Rate 
Customer Charge 
Energy Charge, per kWh 

On Peak kWh 
Off Peak kWh 

Commercial and lndusfrial Service - Above 50 kVA 
Standard Rate 
Customer Charge 

Secondary 
Primary 

Demand Charge, per Billing kW 
Energy Charge, per kWh 

First 300 kWh per billing kW 
Over 300 kWh per billing kW 

Optional Time-of-Use ("TOU") Rate 
Sustomer Charge 

Secondary 
Primary 

lemand Charge, per Billing kW 
3n-Peak Demand Charge, per On-Peak kW 
znergy Charge, per kWh 

Small Commercial 
Standard Rate 
Zustomer Charge 
Energy Charge, per kWh 

- 

3ptional Time-of-Use ("TOU) Rate 
Zustomer Charge 
Energy Charge, per kWh 

On Peak kWh 
Off Peak kWh 

Proposed 

$22.17 

$0.078580 
$0.1 19070 

$28.67 

$0.144390 
$0.055840 

$1 24.00 
$252.00 
$10.15 

$0.081 400 
$0.030460 

$160.00 
$252.00 

$10.05 
$14.50 

$0.026790 

$27.23 
$0.098260 

$36.78 

$0.7 551 00 
$0.065540 



NAVOPACHE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 

Irrigation and Wafer Pumping 
Standard Rate 
Customer Charge 
3emand Charge, per Billing kW 
Znergy Charge, per kWh 

3 ptio na I Tim e-of-Use ("TO U") Rate 
hstomer Charge 
lemand Charge, per Billing kW 
3n-Peak Demand Charge, per On-Peak kW 
Inergy Charge, per kWh 

Security Lights 
Zonsumer Owned Security Lights 

175 Watt MVL 
250 Watt MVL 
400 Watt MVL 
100 Watt HPS 
150 Watt HPS 
250 Watt HPS 

'ole Charge 

Zooperative Owned Security Lights 
175 Watt MVL 
250 Watt MVL 
400 Watt MVL 
100 Watt HPS 
150 Watt HPS 
250 Watt HPS 

'ole Charge 

75 kWh/Mc 
1 10 kWhlMc 
175 kWNMc 
34 kWh/Mc 
50 kWh1Mc 
85 kWh1Mc 

75 kWh1Mc 
1 10 kWh1Mc 
175 kWh/Mc 
34 kWh1Ma 
50 kWh1Mc 
85 kWh1Mc 

~ ~~~ 

Street Lighting 
175 Watt MVL 75 kWh/Mo 
250 Watt MVL 1 10 kWh/Mo 
400 Watt MVL 175 kWh/Mo 

1000 Watt MVL 435 kWh1Mo 
100 Watt HPS 34 kWhlMo 
150 Watt HPS 50 kWh1Mo 
250 Watt HPS 85 kWh/Mo 

Proposed 

$40.23 
$5.24 

$0.094300 

$45.23 
$5.50 
$9.43 

$0.042140 

$9.09 
$1 1.77 
$1 9.28 
$5.89 
$8.33 

$1 0.96 
$4.17 

$10.98 
$14.33 
$23.18 
$9.13 

$1 1.57 
$14.19 
$4.17 

$10.98 
$13.29 
$23.18 
$41.90 
$5.89 
$8.33 

$1 0.96 
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